
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD IAU, 16 RHAGFYR 2021 
 
 

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU'R 
CYHOEDD A'R AMGYLCHEDD 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 
O’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R 
AMGYLCHEDD SYDD I’W GYNNAL YN RHITH-GYFARFOD AM 
2.00 YP AR DYDD MERCHER, 22 RHAGFYR, 2021 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA 
ATODEDIG. 
 
 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 
 
 
 

Swyddog Democrataidd: Janine Owen 

Ffôn (Llinell Uniongyrchol): 01267 224030 

E-bost: JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 

 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD 
A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

14 AELOD 
 

 
 

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU – 7 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd Karen Davies 
2. Cynghorydd Mansel Charles 
3. Cynghorydd Jeanette Gilasbey 
4. Cynghorydd Dorian Phillips 
5. Cynghorydd Susan Phillips 
6. Cynghorydd Dai Thomas 
7. Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen (Is-Gadeirydd) 
   
   
GRŴP LLAFUR – 4 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd Penny Edwards 
2. Cynghorydd Tina Higgins 
3. Cynghorydd John James (Cadeirydd) 
   
   
GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL – 3 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd Arwel Davies 
2. Cynghorydd Joseph Davies 
3. Cynghorydd Alan Speake 
   
GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL NEWYDD – 1 AELOD 
   
1. Cynghorydd Eryl Morgan 

  
 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA   
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS 
UNRHYW CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I 
UNRHYW EITEM AR YR AGENDA.  

 

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW)   

4. ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD CHWARTER 2 - 2021/22  
(1 EBRILL I 30 MEDI 2021) 

5 - 22 

5. ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD INTERIM Y STRATEGAETH TOILEDAU 
LLEOL  

23 - 48 

6. DATGANIAD GORFODI RHEOLAU CYNLLUNIO DRAFFT 49 - 70 

7. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL  71 - 78 

8. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 
GYNHALIWYD AR 25 TACHWEDD 2021  

79 - 86 

 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

 
22 RHAGFYR 2021 

Yr aelod o'r Cabinet sy'n gyfrifol am y portffolio:-  

Cyng. Hazel Evans (Amgylchedd); Cyng. Philip Hughes (Diogelu’r Cyhoedd);  
Cyng. Ann Davies (Cymunedau a Materion Gwledig);  
Cyng. Peter Hughes Griffiths (Diwylliant, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth);  
Cyng. Jane Tremlett (Gofal Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd). 

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaethau:  
Cymunedau / Amgylchedd /  
Prif Weithredwr 
 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
 

Stephen Pilliner 

 

Jonathan Morgan 

 
Ainsley Williams  
 
 
Noelwyn Daniel 
 
 
Jason Jones 
 
Avril Bracey 
 
Ian Jones 

 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
 

Jackie Edwards 

Swyddi: 
 
 

 

 
Pennaeth Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth 

Pennaeth Cartrefi a 
Chymunedau Mwy Diogel  
 

Pennaeth Gwastraff a 
Gwasanaethau'r Amgylchedd  
 

Rheolwr TGCh a Pholisi 
Corfforaethol a Pennaeth 
Cynllunio dros dro 
 

Pennaeth Adfywio 
 

Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i 
Oedolion 
 

Pennaeth Hamdden 
 
 
 
Rheolwr Gwelliant Busnes 

Rhifau ffôn: / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
 
 
 
 
01267 228150  
sgpilliner@sirgar.gov.uk 
    

01554 899285 
jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

01267 224500  
aiwilliams@sirgar.gov.uk 
  
01267 246270 
ndaniel@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
JaJones@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 

01267 242492 
abracey@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

01267 228309 
IJones@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
01267 228142  
jmedwards@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD CHWARTER 2 - 2021/22  
(1 EBRILL I 30 MEDI 2021)  

YN ARBENNIG I’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU HWN 
 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 
I ystyried y wybodaeth a gynhwysir yn yr adroddiad. 
 

Y Rhesymau:  

 

 Mae dyletswydd gyffredinol ar awdurdodau i wneud trefniadau o ran monitro perfformiad  

 Mae angen inni ddangos i ddinasyddion, aelodau a rheoleiddwyr sut mae perfformiad yn 
cael ei reoli a sut mae ymyriadau priodol yn cael eu rhoi ar waith. 
 

Angen cyfeirio'r mater at y Cabinet / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:      NAC OES 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  4

mailto:sgpilliner@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:aiwilliams@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:ndaniel@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JaJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:abracey@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:IJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:jmedwards@sirgar.gov.uk


 

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
22 DECEMBER 2021 

 

2020/21 QUARTER 2 - PERFORMANCE REPORT  
(1ST APRIL TO 30TH SEPTEMBER 2021) 

RELEVANT TO THIS SCRUTINY 
 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report shows progress as at the end of Quarter 2- 2021/22 of our deliverables (Actions 
and Measures) linked to the Corporate Strategy and our 13 Well-being Objectives.  

 

 No. 13 Well-being Objectives for  2021-22 

S
ta

rt
 W

e
ll
 

1 
Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life 
experiences 

2 Help children live healthy lifestyles (Childhood Obesity) 

3 Support and improve progress, achievement, and outcomes for all learners 

L
iv

e
 W

e
ll
 

4 
Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, helping people into work and 
improving the lives of those living in poverty  

5 Create more jobs and growth throughout the county   

6 Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes   

7 Help people live healthy lives (Tackling risky behaviour and Adult obesity) 

8 Support community cohesion, resilience, and safety 

A
g

e
 

W
e

ll
 

9 
Support older people to age well and maintain dignity and independence in 
their later years 

In
 a

 h
e
a

lt
h

y
 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

10 Look after the environment now and for the future 

11 Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity   

12 Promoting Welsh Language and Culture 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e
 

&
 B

e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

13 Better Governance and use of Resources 

Note 

 2021/2022 is the first year that we will self-evaluate and report on, under the terms of the 
new Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, especially Part 6 of the Act on 
Performance and Governance. 

 All quarterly reports will also be shared with relevant Scrutiny committees (not just quarters 
1 and 3 as is the current arrangement) 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 6



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

2. Legal   

In our published Well-being Statement, we are committed to monitor our Well-being 
Objective action plans. 

 

  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 

Signed:   

Stephen Pilliner - Head of Highways & Transport  
Jonathan Morgan - Head of Homes and Safer Communities 
Ainsley Williams - Head of Waste & Environmental Services 
Noelwyn Daniel - Head of ICT & Corporate Policy & Interim Head of Planning 
Jason Jones - Head of Regeneration 
Avril Bracey - Head of Adult Social Care 
Ian Jones - Head of Leisure 
 

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES  YES  NO NO NO NO NO 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires public bodies to take all 
reasonable steps to meet their Well-being Objectives. 
 
The Local Government and Elections Wales Act 2021 provides for the establishment of a 

new and reformed legislative framework for local government elections, democracy, 

governance and performance. It replaces the Local Government Measure 2009. Part 6 of the 

Act, Performance and Governance of Principal Council’s statutory guidance is the most 

relevant and includes specific duties for the Council: 

Duty Response 
Duty to keep performance under review We will maintain quarterly performance 

monitoring throughout the year. 
This Quarter 2 report addresses this duty. 

Duty to consult on performance 
 

We will undertake a self-assessment and 
undertake consultation on 2021/22 
performance and publish an Annual Report. 

Duty to report on performance – based on 
self-assessment approach 

 

Tudalen 7

https://gov.wales/performance-and-governance-local-authorities-statutory-guidance
https://gov.wales/performance-and-governance-local-authorities-statutory-guidance


 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed:  

Stephen Pilliner - Head of Highways & Transport  
Jonathan Morgan - Head of Homes and Safer Communities 
Ainsley Williams - Head of Waste & Environmental Services 
Noelwyn Daniel - Head of ICT & Corporate Policy & Interim Head of Planning 
Jason Jones - Head of Regeneration 
Avril Bracey - Head of Adult Social Care 
Ian Jones - Head of Leisure 

 

1. Scrutiny Committee – N/A 
 

2. Local Member(s) – N/A  
 

3. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 

4. Relevant Partners – N/A 
 

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations –  
All Departments have been consulted and have had the opportunity to provide comments on 
their performance and progress. 
CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 
AWARE/CONSULTED 

YES 

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
Title of Document Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Corporate Strategy 2018-
2023 (refreshed April 2021) 

Corporate Strategy 2018-23 - updated April 2021 

 

Tudalen 8

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1225816/corporate-strategy-21-22.pdf


PIMS Quarter 2 2021-22 Performance Report of measures & actions 
relevant to Environment and Public Protection scrutiny

The table below provides a summary progress against target for the
Actions and Measures contained within the selected document

Total
On

target
Off

target
Not

reported
Not

available
Annual /

Not started

% on
target

Overall
% on
target

WBO5. Create
more jobs and
growth
throughout the
county

Measures 2 1 1 0 0 0 50% 50%

WBO7.Help
people live
healthy lives
(Tackling risky
behaviour and
obesity)

Actions 3 3 0 0 N/A 0 100%

100%

Measures 2 2 0 0 0 0 100%

WBO8.Support
community
cohesion,
resilience, and
safety

Actions 5 5 0 0 N/A 0 100%

83%

Measures 1 0 1 0 0 0 0%

WBO9.Support
older people to
age well and
maintain dignity
and
independence in
their later years

Actions 1 1 0 0 N/A 0 100% 100%

WBO10.Look
after the
environment
now and for the
future

Actions 27 27 0 0 N/A 0 100%

97%

Measures 5 4 1 0 0 0 80%

WBO11.Improve
the highway
and transport
infrastructure
and connectivity

Actions 13 13 0 0 N/A 0 100%

76%

Measures 4 0 0 0 0 4 0%

WBO13.Better
Governance and
use of
Resources

Actions 4 4 0 0 N/A 0 100% 100%

Overall
Performance

Actions and
Measures

67 60 3 0 0 4 90%

Performance against
Target

On
target

Off
target

Annual
/ Not

Started

PIMS Performance Report

Page 1 of 13
Tudalen 9



Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future
Sub-theme: E - Towards Zero Waste strategy

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

Percentage of waste reused, recycled or
composted

PAM/030

Not applicable Q2:
66.46

End Of Year:
66.08

Target:
65.00

Result:
61.04

Target:
65.00

Result:
61.69

Calculation:
(25901.67÷41988.06)

× 100

Target:
65.00

Target:
65.00

Comment

As indicated in Q1 as a consequence of the fire at CWM’s Nantycaws materials recovery facility, there has
been significant disruption to our normal waste sorting, treatment and disposal arrangements. This has
meant that CWM have had to find alternative outlets for sorting and disposal of waste. This has resulted
in materials going to landfill facilities and alternative plants, some of which have less efficient sorting
processes than would normally be the case. Consequently our overall recycling performance has dropped.
In addition to this given the suspension during COVID of the kerbside restrictions of black bags being
eased and the increased contamination of our kerbside recycling the capture of high quality recycling has
decreased

Remedial Action

The short term arrangements for recycling treatment remain in place. However, CWM are finalising
alternative arrangements as part of a medium term strategy to recover the position. In addition the black
bag restriction policy and recycling contamination engagement programme has recommenced in October
this position should improve for Q3.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: Off target

OFF TARGET

PIMS Quarter 2 2021-22 Performance Report of measures & actions 
relevant to Environment and Public Protection scrutiny

Theme: WBO5. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county
Sub-theme: D-Strengthen the foundational economy and community resilience.

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3
End of
Year

The percentage of high risk businesses
that were liable to a programmed
inspection that were inspected, for: iii)
Animal Health

PPN/001iii

Not applicable Q2:
15

End Of Year:
47

Target:
10

Result:
18

Target:
28

Result:
25

Calculation:
(39÷159) × 100

Target:
50

Target:
100

Comment

Officers have been heavily focused on the Covid-19 element of Animal health, particularly with reference
to Marts and Markets where there is a High density of people in attendance. The team has focused on
areas of dog breeding both Licensed and illegal. Added to this a member of staff has focused on a
particularly onerous freedom of information act request, which has meant the collation of a vast quantity
of information. We have now made the decision to be less focused on the afore mentioned activities and
officers are working to address the shortfall in this performance indicator and will be prioritising high risk
inspections until March 2022.

Remedial Action
This PI will be achieved by deploying those staff mentioned to focus on high risk inspections as catered
for in this PI. It is our expectation this PI will be achieved by end of financial year.

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: Off target

Theme: WBO8.Support community cohesion, resilience, and safety
Sub-theme: D - Support Safer Communities

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 End of Year

The average number of calendar days
taken to repair all street lamp failures
during the year

THS/009

Not applicable Q2:
23.03

End Of Year:
11.37

Target:
4.00

Result:
10.03

Target:
4.00

Result:
6.79

Calculation:
2843÷419

Target:
4.00

Target:
4.00

Comment
The team have made significant progress with the backlog despite still being off target. The stand alone
figures have improved from 10 days in Q1 to just over 4 days in Q2, however we are still working
through the backlog.

Remedial Action
We are progressing with the recruitment of 2 new members of staff and are currently shortlisting for
these posts. We hope to see further improvement in QTR3.

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: Off target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 2 of 13
Tudalen 10



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future

Sub-theme: A - Address requirements of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016

Action 14822 Target date 31/03/2022 (original target 31/03/2021)

Action
promised

We will implement the tree strategy to improve the environment and mitigate the effects of air and noise pollution in our more
populated areas (This applies primarily to trees on land owned or managed by CCC, but could equally well apply to other land e.g. land
managed by other members of the Pubic Service Board, and Town and Community Councils).

Comment

CCC`S Moving Forwards action point 23 refers to "Promote a tree strategy to ...." CCC is setting out its approach to this, and the
scope of the strategy. This will be consistent with that endorsed by the Woodland Trust, but it will be a much shorter document which
focuses on actions. Its delivery will require a collaborative approach to ensure CCC owned land is made available for tree and
woodland planting, by property managers, and it will also require a budget as not all the cost of tree planting can be sought from grant
aid. In particular there are maintenance operations that are not covered by capital grants, yet are essential for the successful
establishment of tree and woodlands. Implementation of the strategy will follow once it has been endorsed following the appropriate
democratic process.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 15193 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will work towards ensuring that CCC meets its Biodiversity and Ecosystem Resilience Duty under Section 6 of the Environment
(Wales) Act: planning what actions it will deliver and reporting on outcomes achieved to WG. Evidencing links between this work and
the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

Comment
CCC`s Draft ENV ACT Forward plan 2020-2023 will be presented to DMT, CMT Pre-cabinet and will go to EPP Scrutiny in Dec 2021.This
was on hold as the urgent priority has been to deal with the recommendations of the Audit Wales. recommendations and ensure the
backlog of Ecology responses to planning applications was being addressed.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 15194 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will work towards ensuring that CCC regularly updates its Environment Act Forward Plan as required by the legislation

Comment
CCC Draft ENV ACT Forward plan 2020-2023 will be presented to DMT, CMT Pre-cabinet and will go to EPP Scrutiny in Dec 2021.This
was on hold as the urgent priority has been to deal with the recommendations of the Audit Wales. recommendations and ensure the
backlog of Ecology responses to planning applications was being addressed.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 15195 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

Ensure staff across CCC at all levels are aware of the need to deliver CCC’s Environment Act Forward Plan and their role in doing this.

Comment

Sessions run for Property Design on designing in biodiversity features into building and landscaping - 4 officers attended, plus session
on building maintenance and bats run for Property and Housing. Bat training was delivered to Development Managers and we ran a
session run for Planning Committee on Ecology and planning decisions. We are also working closely with Active travel on integrating
biodiversity management with the delivery of a replacement multi use path in Lower St Clears.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 15196 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will ensure that CCC’s own development projects deliver biodiversity enhancements, ecological mitigation and compensation, as
per the legislation and policy

Comment

CCC`s Project ecologist (a permanent fully funded post) works on CCC development e.g. Gwenllian School, Kidwelly, and the re-
routing of the cycle way in Lower St Clears, to address and progress the ecological issues such applications raise.
At Gwenllian school, biodiversity mitigation, compensation and enhancement has focused on providing alternative dormouse habitat
consistent with NRW`s EU Protected Species Licencing requirements, which in time will also provide mitigation for the loss of bat
habitat on site. Reptile populations will be translocated to local suitable site as a means of safeguarding these populations, and the loss
of marshy grassland habitat onsite, due to the development will be mitigated by the creation of a new swale, that will be established
with native wetland species. The need to re-route the cycle way in Lower St Clears has provided the opportunity for CCC to purchase a
4ha field, and move the cycle way away from the river. The long term plan is to manage the 4ha field as Local Nature Reserve, secure
this designation, re-route through the cycle way along the edge of this filed away from the river, so that it is not subject to erosion.
The field includes 1 ha of wet land fen which is species rich and there is the potential for the habitats in the remaining 3ha to become
richer in biodiversity if managed appropriately. The site is currently used by a variety of summer migrant birds, a wide range of
invertebrates, and otters. This approach is consistent with CCC`s delivery of its Well Being objectives, Green Infrastructure, and
Nature Recovery. The management of this site will be set out in a costed biodiversity management plan.
£10,801 is the spend on the salary of this post this FY to end of June 21.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 15198 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to deliver the Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC Marsh Fritillary project, which aims to ensure the management of at least
100ha of Marsh Fritillary habitat in perpetuity. We will expand this successful approach and use S 106 agreements and developer
contribution to deliver other necessary biodiversity benefits where this is appropriate.

Comment

The project continues to manage 26 sites , which, with the areas on the SSSIs where management is overseen by NRW, provide a
total of 79ha of marshy grassland in suitable condition for the Marsh Fritillary butterfly. Site management work this FY is improving the
structure and floristic diversity of less suitable areas with the objective of making these more suitable for the butterfly and biodiversity
generally. This year we have started a new project with the Pobl Housing Association and NBGW, focusing on improving the diversity

ON TARGET ETC.

of a CCC owned field on the Cross Hands Business Park.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 3 of 13
Tudalen 11



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future

Sub-theme: C - Net Zero Carbon Local Authority by 2030

Action 14812 Target date 31/03/2030

Action
promised

Continue to extend the use of ‘smart’ and sub-metering technology to ensure accurate and timely capture of energy consumption
data and develop appropriate carbon reduction target for the Council’s non-domestic buildings as part of action plan (NZC-05 & 06)

Comment

Following approval at CMT on 8th August 2021, we immediately began liaising with our industry partners to facilitate the roll-out of
‘smart’ metering technology across our electricity, gas and water supplies. Our electricity and water industry partners are currently at
the scoping stage of their efforts, however we are informed that half-hourly consumption data will begin to flow from our gas meters
within the next month.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 14813 Target date 31/03/2022 (original target 30/09/2021)

Action
promised

Deliver Re:fit Cymru (Energy Efficiency) Phase 1 project to achieve energy / carbon savings (NZC-01)

Comment
Phase 1 completed apart from solar PV installation at Parc Dewi Sant. Additional bat surveys have been submitted and awaiting
Planning approval. Aim to complete by end March 2022 subject to Planning approval.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 14814 Target date 31/03/2030

Action
promised

Continue to work with Welsh Government Energy Service to explore and deliver opportunities for large scale renewable energy
projects (NZC-13)

Comment
We continue to work with Welsh Government Energy Service (WGES) to explore and deliver large-scale renewable energy projects.
WGES have undertaken an assessment of our land holdings, and this is in the process of being reviewed by Planning to identify
feasible renewable energy projects to progress.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 14815 Target date 30/09/2021

Action
promised

Explore the feasibility of tree-planting, and other such measures, on Council controlled land to contribute towards carbon offsetting
(NZC-15)

Comment

Planting schemes have been undertaken in various locations. 4 CCC owned sites in Carmarthenshire that are suitable for tree planting
are subject to grant applications under the WG’s Glas Tir woodland creation scheme .This will provide approx 8.8ha of woodland on
these CCC land holdings and would equate to a carbon sequestration of 5.5 tCO2e. A further in depth study of the carbon
sequestration potential of our Council land holdings is underway in an effort to identify further areas that could be enhanced with
habitats to increase our carbon offsetting.

Service Head: Jason Jones Performance status: On target

Action 14816 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

Develop appropriate target for renewable energy generation as part of annual review of action plan (NZC-16)

Comment
Following publication of the Wales reporting Guidance on 24/05/2021 we will develop an appropriate target for renewable energy
generation. This will also be informed by discussions with Welsh Government and Western Power Distribution regarding the capacity
of the local electricity distribution network.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 14817 Target date 31/03/2030

Action
promised

Continue to work with Carmarthenshire PSB partners to identify and develop opportunities for collaboration regarding carbon
reduction and Work with Welsh Government and Swansea Bay City Region partners to establish a Regional Energy Plan for South
West Wales. (NZC-19 & 20)

Comment

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) held a virtual SW Wales PSBs Net Zero Workshop on 29th September 2021. This event included
speakers from Welsh Government and their consultants who provided an overview of the Public Sector Net Zero Reporting. NRW also
shared their experience in determining baseline emissions and developing carbon reduction strategies through their Carbon Positive
Project.

Hywel Dda UHB have secured Welsh Government grant funding for a solar farm at their Hafan Derwen site and have now secured
Planning permission. We had hoped to establish a power purchase arrangement whereby some of the generated electricity would be
available to supply our adjoining Parc Dewi Sant offices; unfortunately, following technical feasibility studies this may no longer be
possible.

The draft SW Regional Energy Strategy is being finalised to incorporate an economic modelling chapter.
Action plans are to be developed via four thematic workshops: (1) domestic buildings, (2) commercial and industrial, (3) renewables,
and (4) transport and active travel.
Following a final review by Welsh Government the Strategy will then need to be taken through individual Authority governance
structures for approval.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future

Sub-theme: B - Deliver planning according to Planning (Wales) Act 2015

Action 14970 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised
We will develop a joint working strategy between the Countryside Access Unit and the Countryside Operations/Ranger Unit
to ensure an effective working partnership.

Comment
a close working arrangement is in place between Countyside Access and Operations with co-location at Mynydd Mawr and
joint working in a number of areas. Both Managers are also attending regular BMT meetings.

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 4 of 13
Tudalen 12



promised

Comment

Ynni Sir Gâr have been funded under the Welsh Government Rural Development Fund LEADER programme to identify and explore the
feasibility of small-scale community energy projects in the County. The project is working collaboratively with our Ten Towns
initiative.
To-date, 34 potential renewable energy sites have been scoped for suitability with further site-scoping to follow.
As the Ten Towns growth plans for each area note community energy as a theme to explore and develop, an online webinar is to be
held in early November 2021 for all stakeholders across the Ten Towns growth plan teams to further engage with and develop this
project. The project is due to complete in late Spring 2022.
We are also supporting Ynni Sir Gâr to deliver carbon reduction projects at Ysgol Bro Dinefwr including the installation of EV charging
points.

Service Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 14819 Target date 30/09/2021

Action
promised

�e will review the action plan following publication of Welsh Government guidance regarding new national carbon reporting 
framework (NZC-27)

Comment

The ‘Welsh Public Sector Net Zero Reporting Guide’ was due to be issued in April 2020, but its publication was delayed until 24th May
2021.
Whilst reporting to Welsh Government is not mandatory, it is considered important that we do so and play our role in contributing to
the ambition for Welsh public services to be carbon neutral by 2030. Accordingly, we will be reporting to Welsh Government in
accordance with the requirements of the Guide by the 31st October 2021 deadline.
Some of the prescribed reporting methodologies are comparatively blunt instruments based on £ spend and / or assumptions rather
than accurate data. This is notably the case for Procurement – applying the Guide would make it impossible to actively reduce a
Procurement footprint other than by reducing the corresponding £ spend. This spend doesn’t reflect Progressive Procurement /
Circular Economy principles as it doesn’t distinguish whether the spend is in Brazil or Bynea. We will, therefore, continue with the
existing scope of our net zero carbon commitment but adopt the corresponding reporting methodologies prescribed in the Guide.

Serv)ce Head: Noelwyn
Daniel (Planning)

Performance status: On target

Action 14981 Target date 31/03/2023

Action
promised

We will develop projects and programmes to contribute to the Authority’s net-zero carbon ambitions.

Comment
We are implementing a range of projects to contribute to the Authority`s net zero carbon commitment. We have recently completed
the re:FIT programme and the first site of new homes, as well as passivhaus and other fabric first designed buildings to reduce future
carbon requirements.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

Action 14992 Target date 31/03/2024 (original target 31/03/2022)

Action
promised

We will review future plans for Nantycaws in relation to Net Zero Carbon

Comment

Project is currently as an early conceptual stage and is dependent upon two key external factors; WG funding in support of CCC`s
desire to develop an eco-park at the site; and trunk road improvements to the road network in the vicinity, including the site access
itself.
WG are currently in the early stages of feasibility with respect to road/access improvements.
CCC is currently in discussion with WG in relation to the eco-park development from a regeneration, waste and a decarbonisation
perspective.

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

Action 14818 Target date 31/03/2030

Action We will continue to work with Ynni Sir Gâr, and others, to deliver and support local renewable energy projects (NZC-23)

PIMS Performance Report

Page 5 of 13
Tudalen 13



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future

Sub-theme: D - Flood & Water Management Act & Shoreline Management Plan.

Action 14988 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will work in accordance with our Flood Risk Management Plan and commence implementation as part of the strategy for
identifying, managing and mitigating flood risk within our communities

Comment A final draft of the document is with HoS for review

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Action 14989 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will undertake the role of Lead Local Flood Authority in investigating widescale incidents of flooding in accordance with the
Flood and Water Management Act. Including the coordination of flood investigations where there’s multiple sources of flood
causations involving partner organisations as asset owners/Risk Management Authorities (RMAs).

Comment
The team have completed all outstanding reports in this respect. The most recent report is due to be shared with the affected
community in July 21.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Action 14990 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will develop and produce a flood guidance document

Comment
We have undertake research and are finalising a draft of the material we would like published on the web page.
No skills exist in the business unit to edit the web pages; help has been afforded from the wider department and content will be
given to them to upload.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Action 15074 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We shall protect and manage our coastal facilities, including the Millennium Coastal Park, working within regional shoreline
management plan, overseen by Environment Department.

Comment

Discussions and joint working in place with colleagues in Environment Department leading and co-ordinating coastal protection
works via regional partnership. Specific progress with securing funding to replace / divert part of National Cycle Network and
Coastal path at Morfa Baccas, Bynea. Work also commissioned to consider options for coastal protection along Burry Port East
Beach to protect against erosion and exposure of remnants of former Carmarthen Bay Power Station

Service Head: Ian Jones Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 6 of 13
Tudalen 14



Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future
Sub-theme: E - Towards Zero Waste strategy

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

Percentage of streets that are clean

PAM/010

Not applicable Q2:
98.2

End Of Year:
97.8

Target:
92.0

Result:
95.3

Target:
92.0

Result:
95.3

Calculation:
(245÷257) × 100

Target:
92.0

Target:
92.0

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

Average number of working days taken
to clear fly-tipping incidents

PAM/035

Not applicable Q2:
6.4

End Of Year:
5.2

Target:
4.0

Result:
2.9

Target:
4.0

Result:
2.6

Calculation:
2947÷1122

Target:
4.0

Target:
4.0

Comment Av Days in QTR 2 is 2.41 reduced from 2.92 in qtr 1.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

Kilograms of local authority municipal
waste that is not reused, recycled or
composted during the year per person

PAM/043

Not applicable Q2:
73.2

End Of Year:
155.8

Target:
43.8

Result:
38.9

Target:
85.3

Result:
77.9

Calculation:
14709700÷188771

Target:
127.0

Target:
167.9

Comment
Although the waste presented at the kerbside has increased during the last 12 months, there has been a
decrease in waste throughput at our Household Waste Recycling Centre network. This has meant a
decrease in the overall waste that is not reused, recycled or composted during this year per person.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

The Cleanliness Indicator

STS/005a

Not applicable Q2:
82.4

End Of Year:
80.7

Target:
74.0

Result:
76.8

Target:
74.0

Result:
77.0

Calculation:
(0.770428÷1) ×

100

Target:
74.0

Target:
74.0

Comment
We have witnessed relaxation of the lockdown reflects in surveys of pedestrian type litter, ppe and fast
food waste. There is also more visitors for staycation which has increased litter.

Remedial Action
We have introduced 10 town audits, monthly. This allows us to highlight issues to the local cleansing
teams. We also collect data sets on this. Also planning behaviour change campaigns and we are working
closely with Marketing and Media to progress this to launch.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 7 of 13
Tudalen 15



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO10.Look after the environment now and for the future

Sub-theme: E - Towards Zero Waste strategy

Action 13256 Target date 31/03/2022 (original target 31/03/2021)

Action
promised

We will continue to review our waste treatment strategy options and recycling infrastructure needs to ensure that we can continue to
meet our statutory recycling targets and landfill diversion targets from April 2018

Comment We have now finalised and received approval for our Future Waste Strategy in Oct 21 - This work will now move into delivery phase.

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

Action 14983 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to work with CWM Environmental to review our waste treatment/disposal arrangements in the immediate term and
long term by securing appropriate arrangements for treating and disposing of our waste.

Comment
As part of the Future Waste Strategy for Carmarthenshire, CWM environmental are a key stakeholder in the development of the
future workplan. We have worked in conjunction with CWM to develop Circular Economy Projects in two localities in the county and
will continue work to progress wider infrastructure needs for dry recycling and residual waste treatment for the long term.

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

Action 14984 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to review existing household recycling participation rates to maximise landfill diversion and increase recycling.
Undertake a programme of door-stepping to advise and encourage householders to participate in our recycling schemes.

Comment

Due to our response to COVID-19 household participation monitoring and engagement were suspended. These activities have now
been approved for recommencement and a programme of engagement and monitoring will commence in Q3. In addition an all-Wales
compositional analysis will be undertaken in 2022, to assess the recycling contained within our residual waste to direct targeted
education programmes.

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

Action 14985 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will undertake a full review of our waste collection methodology at the kerbside, with a view to assessing alternative models of
delivery on a cost vs performance gain basis. This will include a consultation exercise with a range of stakeholders.

Comment
We have now finalised and received approval for our Future Waste Strategy in Oct 21 - with public consultation taking place in July
2021. This work will now move into delivery phase with ongoing public engagement being a key facet of change. .

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

Action 14986 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We shall continue to target local environment quality issues, including dog fouling, fly-tipping and general litter blight. Review
effectiveness of Public Space Protection Order.

Comment

Engagement has commenced with internal departments to establish in effect a wish list for any further requirements that are not
catered for in the current PSPO. A survey questionnaire design has also been completed for the outside organisations namely the
Town and Community Councils and Sports Associations to provide us with their views.Once that data has been received a report will
be compiled to CMT and PEB followed by a formal consultation where the PSPO will be formulated in July 2022. Environmental crime
is still being reported and dealt with by the Enforcement team ensuring covid health and safety measures are being complied with.

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

Action 14991 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will work with local stakeholders to manage the local environment quality in terms of managing blight and associated problems on
public land by undertaking litter and fly-tipping management arrangements across the County, including enforcement work. This will
include a particular focus on some areas of Llanelli that have specific problems.

Comment
Presently whilst tacking environmental crime in the general sense, we are also focusing specifc areas of Llanelli working with internal
partners in Environmental Health. The evidence relates to prevention through signage and joint patrols to enhance the enforcement.
Also working with outside agencies Dyfed Powys Police to tackle antisocial behaviour problems affecting local residents.

Service Head: Ainsley
Williams

Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 8 of 13
Tudalen 16



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO11.Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

Sub-theme: A - Highway Infrastructure

Action 13272 Target date 31/03/2022 (original target 31/03/2019)

Action
promised

We will conclude the study into the feasibility of developing an overnight lorry park/s within the County.

Comment

As previously reported, following a period of peer group review and discussion with stakeholders, we are currently undertaking phase
2 of the study which will inform the final report. Current activities include detailed surveys of parking hot spots identified in phase 1
analysis, to better understand parking behaviour time and duration of stay.
An up to date review of the known impacts of wider policy landscape in particular effects of BREXIT, Just in Time logistics influence on
freight within Carmarthenshire, and the latest British Parking Association requirements in the context of lorry parking. This along with
a further exercise canvassing views directly from the industry will inform the final report setting out appropriateness and likely costs
associated with any lorry park venture.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

Action 14959 Target date 31/03/2024

Action
promised

We will support the Council’s vision for Carmarthenshire to become the Cycling Hub of Wales by continuing to develop Active Travel
infrastructure. We will also support the delivery of major on road cycle events.

Comment

We continue to be one of the highest performing authorities in Wales in terms of attracting funding and delivering significant active
travel improvements across Wales. This is allowing us to develop and implement our masterplans across all our main towns including
the iconic new bridge that is being constructed as part of the Llanelli spinal route. Challenges remain in terms of Welsh funding being
focussed almost exclusively on urban centres prescribed by the Active Travel Act, however we continue to work with them to raise this
issue and identify opportunities that support rural and semi rural communities. We have been successful in obtaining an additional
672k in year funding from WG that will support infrastructure at locations including Morfa Bacas and the Tywi Valley. We have an
established cycling Steering Board brings together stakeholders from across numerous divisions as well as key external stakeholders
to ensure we continue to deliver on all aspect of the Carmarthenshire Cycling Strategy. The recent successful tour of Britain time trial
event is a reflection of our growing stature as the cycling hub of Wales.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

Action 14960 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to support and contribute to the Weltag process with Welsh Government to support the delivery of a bypass for
Llandeilo to improve air quality and safety in the town of Llandeilo.

Comment

We have been actively engaged in the WelTAG advisory panel. We have clearly set out the position of CCC in terms of the Bypass
being the only feasible option available to address long standing concerns in and around Llandeilo, as well as in terms of the impact
that congestion has on the strategic Swansea to Manchester trunk road. The panel review associated with WelTAG 2/3 has concluded
and we are awaiting the subsequent report and recommendations

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

Action 14965 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will deliver the 3 year capital investment program for highway maintenance in accordance with then resources available

Comment
A prioritised risk based programme of highway surface remedial schemes has commenced. The surfacing dressing programme (13
Capital funded) is completed and a programme of 50 road re-surfacing schemes is a third complete with substantial completion due in
November. The programme invests Capital funding alongside WG grant funding.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

Action 14967 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will develop the Highway Maintenance Policy to in accordance with the Highways Asset Management Plan.

Comment
The Highway Maintenance Manual went to Pre-cabinet 4th October and is now scheduled to be at Scrutiny Committee on the 25th
November.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

Action 14968 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will develop, maintain and deliver a 3 year capital maintenance programme of highway bridge strengthening and replacement
schemes. Prioritising delivery of schemes with the resources available

Comment
This years Capital programme will strengthen 3 and replace 4 sub-standard structures and develop further schemes for the forward
programme subject to available resource.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO11.Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

Sub-theme: B - Integrated Public Transport Network

Action 14962 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to work with national and regional bodies to develop the public transport network to support carbon reduction and
economic development

Comment

On a strategic basis we are actively working with Welsh Government, Transport for Wales regional partners, user groups and
operators to influence and contribute to the national bus reform work. Carmarthenshire through Stephen Pilliner are a regional lead
on this matter. We continue to be a key partner in the development of a south west Wales METRO which looks to enhance and
integrate public and active modes of transport to provide a coherent network for moving people in and around the region. We have
been successful in drawing down Welsh Government grant that is allowing us to develop and implement improvements to some of
our key public transport interchanges as well as rolling out a programme of infrastructure improvements along our key public
transport corridors where measures include (but are not limited to) new high quality shelters and real time passenger information
systems. The improvements are designed to encourage modal shift away from the private car thereby contributing to carbon
reduction, as well as improving the attractiveness, accessibility and vitality of our economic centres

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 9 of 13
Tudalen 17



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO11.Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

Sub-theme: C - School Transport network

Action 14969 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised
We will continue to support the delivery of the Modernising Education Programme – redesigning networks to facilitate the
movement of pupils as set out in our home to school transport policy.

Comment
We will continue to work with MEP team to deliver transport where required to support the MEP programme where possible,
however increasing demand for transport and external factors has resulted in a diminishing supply pool of buses and taxis
which needs to be considered as part of the process

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO11.Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

Sub-theme: D - Support Community and rural Transport

Action 15106 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised
We will ensure that the Council works with partners to develop community transport opportunities across the county,
which should consider all feasible means of transport to address local needs.

Comment We will continue to maintain existing schemes and respond to any requests received for unmet needs.

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

Action 15107 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised We will ensure that the Council improves promotion of its Country Cars scheme.

Comment
Country Cars is currently operating at a significantly reduced level due to COVID however we will work with the RVS to
review promotions when volunteer availability allows

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO11.Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

Sub-theme: E - Road Safety Strategy

Action 14964 Target date 03/01/2022 (original target 31/03/2024)

Action
promised

We will work with communities to submit bids to the Welsh Government to secure funding for the development of Safer Routes in
Communities and Active Travel to improve walking routes to encourage more sustainable travel to assist with achieving the
objective of decarbonisation.

Comment Two expressions of interest have been taken forward to full bid status.

Service Head: Stephen G
Pilliner

Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO11.Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

Sub-theme: F - Modernising our vehicle Fleet

Action 14961 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will update the Council’s Fleet Strategy to reduce the level of Carbon and Nitrogen Dioxide emissions from our transport
operations over the next five years - including Reducing fossil fuel:train staff in new technologies; explore use of alternative
vehicles such as e-scooters and promoting active travel.

Comment

The staff travel guide has been reviewed and updated to reflect New Ways of Working which contributes to reducing carbon
emissions from the authority’s fleet usage. An electric demonstration refuse vehicle has been trialled to reflect and pave the way
for the transition strategy to lower emission vehicles by 2030.
The CCC electric vehicle strategy is close to finalisation and provides a plan and technical evidence base to support the transition to
ultra low emission vehicles, and to develop and promote a network of electric charging points for Carmarthenshire. This will in turn
attract a higher number of electric vehicles to be added to the fleet to replace current internal combustion engine models.

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

Action 14963 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to develop the infrastructure for the use of electric vehicles across the county including in rural areas.

Comment

To date we have installed 26 fast charging points at 24 locations across Carmarthenshire. This provision is being further extended
this year with a further 15 fast charging points being installed at 13 locations. These locations include a number of leisure centres
including Carmarthen, St Clears and Newcastle Emlyn. Next financial year we have already located a number of other sites across
the county that are interested in accommodating further charging infrastructure. We are also nearing completion of the Cross
Hands Rapid Charging Hub which is a custom built location adjacent to the A48 that will house 4 x 50kW Rapid Charging Units and
1 x 150kW Ultra Rapid Charging Unit

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO13.Better Governance and use of Resources

Sub-theme: A -Transforming, Innovating and Changing (TIC) the way we work and deliver services

Action 15097 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised
We will develop a new pro-active Public Health and Infection Control Service that will build on what we have learned from
the COVID experiences.

Comment
Over the next couple of months a new health protection service will be developed within Homes and Safer Communities
that will build on our current approach to infection prevention and control across communities and specific settings e.g.
care homes, schools etc.

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 10 of 13
Tudalen 18



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO13.Better Governance and use of Resources

Sub-theme: B6 - Managing risks, performance and finance

Action 14971 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will review Transport and Highways systems and processes and modernise our IT systems to improve efficiency.

Comment
continuing improvements are being made within the existing ICT systems for more integrated processes between WDM, the
highway asset management system and the corporate Firmstep and Total system, this includes mobile working for highway and
inspectors and an integrated customer care system. A wider review of the ICT system is being planned.

Service Head: Stephen G Pilliner Performance status: On target

Action 14982 Target date 31/03/2023

Action
promised

We will continue to maintain and manage the PPE (Personal Protective Equipment) and cleaning stores

Comment We are continuing to manage the store facilities

Service Head: Jackie Edwards Performance status: On target

Action 15055 Target date 31/03/2023

Action
promised

We shall provide technical advice and support on grounds maintenance of playing fields to Town Councils, Community Council`s
and Sporting Organisations in relation to transferred assets.

Comment Continued support provided

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

Theme: WBO5. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county
Sub-theme: D-Strengthen the foundational economy and community resilience.

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3
End of
Year

The percentage of high risk businesses
that were liable to a programmed
inspection that were inspected, for: i)
Trading Standards

PPN/001i

Not applicable Q2:
1

End Of Year:
1

Target:
5

Result:
2

Target:
25

Result:
26

Calculation:
(45÷174) × 100

Target:
50

Target:
100

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

Theme: WBO7.Help people live healthy lives (Tackling risky behaviour and obesity)
Sub-theme: A - Eat and breathe healthily

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

Percentage of food establishments that
meet food hygiene standards

PAM/023

Not applicable Q2:
92.36

End Of Year:
88.65

Target:
80.00

Result:
83.17

Target:
83.00

Result:
86.72

Calculation:
(1900÷2191) ×

100

Target:
86.00

Target:
90.00

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

Measure Description

2020/21
Comparative Data

2021/22 Target and Results

Best Quartile Welsh Median Our Actual
Quarter

1
Quarter 2

Quarter
3

End of
Year

The percentage of Food Business
establishments inspected that were
liable to a programmed inspection as
per the Food Standards Agency
Recovery Plan.

PPN/002

Not applicable New measure Target:
10

Result:
11

Target:
25

Result:
43

Calculation:
(176÷407) × 100

Target:
40

Target:
100

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 11 of 13
Tudalen 19



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO7.Help people live healthy lives (Tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

Sub-theme: A - Eat and breathe healthily

Action 15098 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to ensure we meet regulatory requirements to high standards in terms of environmental health functions e.g. food
standards and hygiene.

Comment

The Food, Safety and Health team has continued to undertake duties in relation to Food and Feed Safety Q1 and Q2, and whilst
ensuring new food businesses are registered, have also been proactive in surveillance of food businesses across the authority,
obtaining an accurate picture of the local business landscape. With Food activities being carried out in accordance with the Food
Standards Agency’s ‘COVID-19 Local Authority Recovery Plan’ – 199 joint Food Hygiene and Standards Inspections have been
completed, 77 feed inspections, 121 new food business registrations have been processed and 572 service requests have been
handled by the team. 10 Food Hygiene notices have been issued as a result of the food hygiene inspections to seek compliance and
we continue to provide advice and support food businesses in export of food, with 26 Export Health Certificates having been issued.
299 Infectious disease cases have been investigated, whilst a combination of 21 personal and premises skin piercing registrations
have been processed. Officers partook in a Multi Agency raid where Smokies (illegally produced meat) were found and removed from
the food chain with investigations ongoing. Official Control monitoring of shellfish harvesting areas continues on a monthly basis and
the food safety sampling programme has recommenced with monthly sampling being undertaken at Carmarthenshire food
businesses.

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

Action 15099 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will develop a pro-action Air Quality Delivery Plan, in conjunction with other Council Divisions and key partners.

Comment
The Air Quality Delivery Plan has been developed and the comments received during E&PP scrutiny committee on 2nd July have been
included as part of the consultation response. This will be fed back to an AQ Action Steering Group meeting that has been arranged
for Fri 29th October where it is anticipated that the Plan will be adopted.

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO7.Help people live healthy lives (Tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

Sub-theme: D - Substance Misuse

Action 15184 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised
We shall draft the Mental Health/ Substance misuse pathway and seek agreement by regional partners to develop and
provide training programme to reflect the new approach

Comment

The Area Planning Board are coordinating work to develop a Mental Health and Substance Misuse care pathway. We are
engaged in this work and have representation from our specialist teams.

There is also work underway relating to Alcohol Related Brain Damage (ARBD) which is increasingly prevalent.

Service Head: Avril Bracey Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 12 of 13
Tudalen 20



ACTIONS - Theme: WBO8.Support community cohesion, resilience, and safety

Sub-theme: D - Support Safer Communities

Action 15064 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will ensure the Council fulfils its duties relating to the current Contest Strategy (counter terrorism) and respond to any duties as
they arise.

Comment

Work has continued on the development of a delivery plan, with contributions from partners, in response to the new Contest Cymru
Delivery Framework to identify local priorities and objectives to deliver on the four areas of Contest (Prevent, Protect, Prepare &
Pursue). This will enable the Council to continue to fulfil its duties to counter the threat from terrorism. Information is awaited
following the outcome of the recent Home Office consultation on the proposed Protect duty which will aim to improve protective
security and preparedness at publicly accessible locations. In the meantime, arrangements being put in place to establish multi-
agency Carmarthenshire Protective Security Preparedness Group.

Service Head: Noelwyn Daniel Performance status: On target

Action 15065 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will work with departments to ensure compliance with the new corporate CCTV policy

Comment

Discussions have taken place with departmental CCTV leads on the new Council policy. A new CCTV lead officer post has been
recruited to which will provide specialist advice and support to Council departments over the next year to ensure effective
governance arrangements are in place for the Council’s use and management of its public space CCTV camera systems. This will
enable the Council to comply with its statutory responsibilities and the implementation of its CCTV Policy.

Service Head: Noelwyn Daniel Performance status: On target

Action 15066 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will work with departments to deliver the White Ribbon campaign action plan

Comment

Following confirmation on 30 June of the Council’s success in achieving White Ribbon status and the White Ribbon Campaign’s
approval of the action plan devised in partnership with departments, a Steering Group has been established to drive forward progress
on activity identified in the action plan in collaboration with all relevant departments. The Steering Group will hold its inaugural
meeting in October and will begin to make plans to mark White Ribbon Day on 25 November.

Service Head: Noelwyn Daniel Performance status: On target

Action 15067 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will ensure progress against the Safer Communities Partnership Action Plan

Comment

Work is ongoing in collaboration with community safety partners to target the Safer Communities Partnership’s priorities of Class A
drugs and County Lines, Violent Crime including Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence, Counter-Terrorism,
Cyber Crime, Child Sexual Exploitation and Community Cohesion. Key work in the period has included planning targeted action
involving the Police, Council and other partners for a further County Lines Intensification Week to take place in October. Close
partnership working continues to tackle the drug, alcohol and anti-social behaviour issues in Tyisha with an action plan being
developed in response to a residents’ survey on how they feel about policing, reassurance and safety in their neighbourhood. Weekly
community cohesion tension monitoring meetings continue to discuss any issues of interest and discussions are taking place to
consider regional working on common themes in domestic homicides in order to see if any lessons can be learned or service
responses improved, within and between agencies.

Service Head: Noelwyn Daniel Performance status: On target

Action 15100 Target date 31/03/2022

Action
promised

We will continue to be pro-active in the trading standards field (e.g. financial exploitation, licensing, POCA, COVID enforcement)
ensuring we do as much as is possible to protect the public.

Comment

During q1 & 2 we have conducted 2466 (1076 Q2) Covid enforcement visits which has resulted in 9 (3 in Q2) notices being issued. Of
the 9 notices, 5 (2 in Q2) were terminated prior to the expiry date as the business showed immediate remediation and compliance
meant we could terminate the notice before expiry. 13 Proceeds of crime (POCA) cases have been investigated with 8 of these
resulting in further action. There were 8 cases in the system post April 2021 which have a strong potential to proceed to court but
are still in investigation stages. We have received 1532 (692 in Q2) Trading standards consumer protection, advocacy and support
enquires and referrals, 967 (428 in Q2)of which required further investigation and 51 Financial exploitation (FESS) referrals requiring
further action by the team. Licensing have processed 433 taxi and private hire applications, 35 knowledge and safeguarding tests for
drivers, 136 licensed premises applications, 42 personal licence applications and 170 temporary event notices.

Service Head: Jonathan Morgan Performance status: On target

ACTIONS - Theme: WBO9.Support older people to age well and maintain dignity and independence in their later years

Sub-theme: B - Better quality and more accessible health and social care services

Action 14987 Target date 31/03/2022

Action promised We shall review and update our Public Convenience Strategy as necessary.

Comment

A continuous review is undertaken of current public convenience premises to include any changes to opening times and
types of facilities available. Suitable additional premises are also added to the list of available toilets, for example, new
buildings / toilet facilities, and appropriate office facilities as and when they become available.

The Local Toilets Strategy will be subject to formal review within a year of each ordinary election. The next election date in
Wales is Thursday 5th May 2022. Therefore, the latest date for review of Carmarthenshire’s Local Toilets Strategy will be
the 4th May 2023.

Service Head: Ainsley Williams Performance status: On target

PIMS Performance Report

Page 13 of 13
Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 
 
 

ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD INTERIM  
Y STRATEGAETH TOILEDAU LLEOL 

Pwrpas:   

Bydd yn ofynnol cyhoeddi Adroddiad Cynnydd Interim erbyn mis Chwefror 2022 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 

Ystyried y wybodaeth yn yr adroddiad hwn a chymeradwyo Adroddiad Cynnydd Interim drafft 
y Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol.  

 

Rhesymau:  

Rhan 8 o Ddeddf Iechyd y Cyhoedd (Cymru) 2017: Mae Darpariaeth Toiledau yn gosod 
dyletswydd ar bob awdurdod lleol yng Nghymru i baratoi a chyhoeddi strategaeth toiledau 
lleol ar gyfer ei ardal. Mae'r Ddeddf hefyd yn gosod dyletswydd ar bob awdurdod lleol i 
gyhoeddi adroddiad cynnydd interim o fewn chwe mis i ben-blwydd cyhoeddi 2 flynedd y 
Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol wreiddiol. Yn achos Sir Gaerfyrddin, bydd hyn yn digwydd ym mis 
Chwefror 2022, gan y cafodd y strategaeth wreiddiol ei mabwysiadu ym mis Awst 2019. 

 

Mae statws y Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol a gyhoeddwyd yn parhau i fod yn gyfredol gan fod 
diweddariadau cyfnodol wedi'u gwneud. 
 

Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol    OES 

Pwyllgor Craffu Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r Amgylchedd 22 Rhagfyr 2021. 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad OES       

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES     

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  
Y Cyng. Hazel Evans - yr Aelod Cabinet dros yr Amgylchedd  

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  
Yr Amgylchedd 

 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:  
Ainsley Williams 
 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Rhys Davies 

Swydd:  

 

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff 

Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Bwrdeisiol a 
Chydymffurfiaeth 

 

 
 
 
Ffôn: 01267 224500 
Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
AiWilliams@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
Ffôn: 01267 224542 
Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
RJRDavies@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
DIOGELI’R CYHOEDD A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

 
22 RHAGFYR 2021 

 

Tudalen 23

Eitem Rhif  5

mailto:AiWilliams@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:RJRDavies@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC PROTECTION  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
22 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 
LOCAL TOILETS STRATEGY  

INTERIM PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 
Part 8 of the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017: Provision of Toilets came into force on 31 May 
2018 and placed a duty on each local authority in Wales to prepare and publish a local toilets 
strategy for its area.  
 
There is no statutory requirement for local authorities to provide public toilets and the duty to 
prepare a strategy does not in itself require local authorities to provide and maintain public toilets 
themselves but are required to take a strategic view across their area on how these facilities can 
be provided and accessed by the local population.  
 
The Act also requires local authorities to prepare an interim progress report setting out the steps 
taken in line with the strategy every two-year period from the date of the adopted strategy. This 
interim progress report is required to be published within six months of the end date of the two-
year period. 
 
Carmarthenshire County Council published its Local Toilets Strategy during August 2019. The 
strategy identified the following 10 key recommendations to enhance Carmarthenshire’s long 
term toilet provision:  
 

 Review of all current toilet facilities – position/mapping and opening times 
 

 Identify and encourage other council facilities to become more publicly available 
 

 Establish partnership links with public/private companies and organisations 
 

 Investigate options for a Community Partnership Toilet Scheme (CTS) 
 

 Ensure adequate provision of Portable Toilet facilities such as during temporary events  
 

 Encourage the installation of Changing Places toilets within appropriate new building 
developments 

 

 Explore charging options to eradicate social misuse and vandalism where appropriate 
 

Tudalen 24



 

 
 

 Improve Communication and Information on available toilet facilities 
 

 To make available public toilet data on the Welsh Government Mapping Application (LLE 
National Map of toilets) 

 

 Where appropriate, to consider the incorporation of toilet provision in accordance with 
planning policy and national planning guidance. 

 
 
 
The attached report sets out progress made to date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 

Tudalen 25



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
2. Legal   

We have a statutory duty under Part 8 of the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017 to publish an 
interim progress report. 

5. Risk Management Issues 

Failing to publish an Interim Progress Report would result in the authority being non-compliant 
with the requirements of the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017 (Part 8 Provision of Toilets). 

 

 
 
 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 

 

Signed:                  A I Williams                                       Head of Waste & Environmental Services                           

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 

 
Finance 

 
ICT 

 
Risk 
Management 
Issues 

 

 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

YES  YES  NONE NONE YES  NONE NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

 

Any increase in public toilets provision supports Wellbeing Objective 8 – Community 
Cohesion, Resilience & Safety (Live Well). It also supports Wellbeing Objective 9 – 
Supports older people to age well and maintain dignity and independence in later years 
(Age Well). 

Tudalen 26



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

 

Signed:                 A I Williams                                       Head of Waste & Environmental Services                                               

 
1. Scrutiny Committee -  
Environmental & Public Protection Scrutiny Committee - 22nd December 2021. 

 

2.Local Member(s)  - N/A 

 

3.Community / Town Council - N/A 

 

4.Relevant Partners - N/A 

 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  - N/A 

 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER AWARE/CONSULTED: YES 

 

Cllr. Hazel Evans is aware of the updates made 
since the initial strategy was published (as 
outlined in the detailed report) and endorses the 
interim progress report as set out. 

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 

Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Carmarthenshire County 
Council’s Local Toilets 
Strategy 
 

 https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/12
19856/local-toilets-strategy.pdf  

Public Health (Wales) Act 
2017 
 

 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/en/anaw/2017/2/co
ntents  

 

Tudalen 27

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1219856/local-toilets-strategy.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1219856/local-toilets-strategy.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/en/anaw/2017/2/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/en/anaw/2017/2/contents


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

1 
 

 
 

Local Toilets Strategy  

Interim Progress Report 

February 2022 

carmarthenshire.gov.wales 

 
 
 

DRAFT 

Tudalen 29



 

 

 

Contents                                                                            Page 

 

Introduction   ……………………………………………………. 1 

 

Local Toilets Strategy Recommendations    ……………….... 2 

 

Progress     ……………..……………………………………….. 3 

 

Next Steps  ….…………………………………………………. 10 

 

Appendix A, Current List of Facilities ..……………………… 11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 30



 

1 
 

Introduction 
 

Carmarthenshire County Council published its Local Toilets Strategy in August 2019 following 

the introduction of the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017, Part 8, which places a duty on local 

authorities to prepare and publish a local toilets strategy for its area. 

 

The strategy sets out the long-term strategic view on how these facilities can be provided and 

accessed by our local population and visitors alike. 

 

The aim if the strategy is to enable a broader consideration of options available for providing 

toilets for public use, ranging from traditional stand-alone public toilets through to toilets in 

private ownership, and to increase the number of publicly available toilets by entering into 

partnerships with businesses, making available facilities in suitable Council buildings and to 

encourage the integration of accessible facilities into any new building development where 

practicable.   

 

There is no statutory requirement for local authorities to provide public toilets, however, the 

aim of the strategy is to mitigate potential impacts where there may be a loss of toilet facilities 

and to enhance provision by additional creative ways.    

 

The Public Health (Wales) Act 2017, Part 8, also requires local authorities to prepare and 

publish a progress report following a two-year period from first publication. This progress 

report therefore outlines what we have achieved to date in line with the action plan therein. 

 

The purpose of this report has not been to undertake a fundamental review of 
Local Toilets Strategy, rather it is an assessment of progress made to date. 

 

Carmarthenshire County Council’s Local Toilets Strategy identified ten recommendations to 

support and enhance public convenience availability and awareness within the County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 31



 

2 
 

Summary of Local Toilets Strategy Recommendations  

 

In partnership with the British Toilet Association, Carmarthenshire County Council’s Local 

Toilets Strategy identified 10 key recommendations to enhance Carmarthenshire’s long term 

toilet provision:  

 

1. Review of all current toilet facilities – position/mapping and opening times 

 

2. Identify and encourage other council facilities to become more publicly available 

 

3. Establish partnership links with public/private companies and organisations 

 

4. Investigate options for a Community Partnership Toilet Scheme (CTS) 

 
5. Ensure adequate provision of Portable Toilet facilities such as during temporary 

events  

 

6. Encourage the installation of Changing Places toilets within appropriate new building 

developments 

 

7. Explore charging options to eradicate social misuse and vandalism where 

appropriate 

 

8. Improve Communication and Information on available toilet facilities 

 

9. To make available public toilet data on the Welsh Government Mapping Application 

(LLE National Map of toilets) 

 

10. Where appropriate, to consider the incorporation of toilet provision in accordance 

with planning policy and national planning guidance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 32



 

3 
 

Progress on Delivering the Benefits of the Strategy 

 

To date, in line with the recommended actions within the strategy, we have increased the 

number of identified publicly available facilities from forty to sixty-three. This represents an 

increase of 57 percent. 

 

1. Review of all current toilet facilities – position/mapping and opening times 

 

A review of Carmarthenshire County Council and Town/Community Council traditional 

standalone public toilet facilities has been undertaken. These facilities have been mapped 

on the Carmarthenshire County Council corporate website. Each mapped location has 

additional data (by zooming in and clicking on the relevant location icon, figure 2) to 

incorporate opening times, operational responsibility, and provides information on whether 

any charges apply. (See figure 1 & 2) 

 

 

(Figure 1) 

 

 

 

Tudalen 33



 

4 
 

 

                (Figure 2) 

 

This review identified several other facilities which have since been added to the 

corporate website mapping details including relevant individual information. 

 

2. Identify and encourage other council toilet facilities to become more publicly 

available 

 
A review of in-house facilities was also undertaken to identify appropriate publicly 

accessible buildings where individual location, access and circumstances would allow use 

by members of public such as libraries, leisure centres and office locations. This review 

identified a further fifteen toilet facilities which have been added to Carmarthenshire County 

Council’s corporate website and the Welsh Government’s Lle Mapping facility. A small 

number of toilets within the Authority’s buildings were deemed unsuitable for public use 

due the remote location of the facilities from the building entrance or public area.  

 

The following additional existing locations were identified and listed as suitable for public 

access: 

 

 Ty Elwyn, Llanelli 

 Ffwrnes, Llanelli 

 Lyric, Carmarthen 

 St. Clears Leisure Centre 

 Newcastle Emlyn Leisure Centre 

 Municipal Buildings, Crescent Road, Llandeilo 

 Carmarthen Leisure Centre 

Tudalen 34



 

5 
 

 Llanelli Leisure Centre 

 Ammanford Library 

 Llandovery Library 

 Carmarthen Library 

 Amman Valley Leisure Centre 

 Llandovery Swimming Pool 

 Llanelli Library 

 Burry Port Library 

 

3. Explore potential partnership links with public/private companies and 

organisations 

 

Due to the pandemic situation, this action has been temporarily delayed. As Covid-19 

restrictions ease, and cases of transmission stabilise and crucially, confidence grows 

amongst companies and organisations, they can then be approached to establish their 

appetite to help with respect to suitable provision in future. 

 

 

4. Community/Comfort/Partnership Toilet Scheme (CTS) 

 

The Community Toilet Partnership is a managed scheme which aims to tap into the already 

available toilet provision on a more formal basis to enhance existing provision. The scheme 

allows members of the public to use the toilet facilities in a range of approved local 

businesses and other organisations during their opening hours without purchasing any 

goods or services. Participating premises undertake to keep their toilets safe, clean, 

hygienic, easily accessible, and well-stocked. In return, they receive an annual grant 

payment based on the range of facilities they are able to offer.  

 

Participants in the scheme are also required to display a sticker in their window (the 

National Logo scheme signage provided by Welsh Government) and agree to their facilities 

being regularly inspected without prior notification, for quality, accessibility, and 

cleanliness. It is anticipated that the businesses may see increased footfall which in turn 

may encourage users to return to those businesses in the future.  

 

Again, due to the ongoing concerns amongst businesses in relation to the Covid-19 

pandemic, activity on the initiative (Community Toilet Scheme across the County) was 

suspended shortly following its inception, as lockdown had essentially closed most 

accessible toilets in shopping centres and other business establishments. 

  

Tudalen 35



 

6 
 

 

Initially, the Pensarn shopping area in Carmarthen was identified as a high priority area 

due to lack of available provision. Following discussions with all relevant business 

establishments in the vicinity, one retail outlet was identified as having appropriately 

positioned toilet facilities which could be made available to the public. Consequently, this 

establishment participated in the scheme prior to the national lockdown. 

 

There remains concerns from business premises in general to open their facilities to non-

customers because of the ongoing Covid-19 situation. However, as the severity of the 

pandemic diminishes and confidence returns, it is anticipated that many suitable 

businesses will be amenable to the scheme. As such, a targeted approach to appropriate 

business premises should facilitate an increase in publicly available toilets as the pandemic 

situation stabilises. 

 

5. Portable Toilet Provision 

 

For larger events, advice regarding the adequate provision of sanitary facilities at events is 

provided by the Events Safety Advisory Group for Carmarthenshire. The Advisory Group 

includes representatives from the County Council (highways/traffic management, 

environmental health, licensing, marketing), Dyfed Powys Police, Mid and West Wales Fire 

and Rescue Service, Welsh Ambulance Service, and the South Wales Trunk Road Agency.  

Events which are referred to the Safety Advisory Group and requested to produce an Event 

Management Plan in addition to any licence application.  

 

Example Event Management Plan templates are available to download from 

Carmarthenshire County Council’s Corporate website and include a relevant section on 

toilet provision/consideration. 

 

For smaller events that may not be referred to the Safety Advisory Group there is a specific 

Licensing For Events page, Licensing for events (gov.wales) which includes a link to the 

toilet strategy. 

 

Event organisers are advised on the appropriate toilet provision in line with the online 

Purple Guide which has been written in consultation with the Events Industry Forum and 

the Health & Safety Executive. 

 

  

Tudalen 36

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/business/organising-events/community-toolkit/licensing-for-events/#.YUNCLCuSk44


 

7 
 

The current guidance on portable toilet provision at events is shown in the table below. 

 

 

  Female Toilets Male Toilets 

For events with a gate time of 
less than 

6-hours duration opening 

1 per 100 
1 per 500, 

plus 1 urinal per 150 

For events with a gate opening 
time of 6 hours or more, but with 
little or no alcohol or food served 

1 per 85 
1 per 425, 

plus 1 urinal per 125 

For events with a gate opening 
time of 6 hours or more, with 
alcohol and food served in 
quantity 

1 per 75 
1 per 400, 

plus 1 urinal per 100 

For campsites at major events, 
swapping the emphasis from 
urinal to WCs for males 

1 per 75 
1 per 150, 

plus 1 urinal per 250 

 

6. Changing Places Toilets 

 

As standard accessible toilets do not meet the need of all people with a disability, some 

people often need extra space and equipment to allow them to use the facilities safely and 

comfortably. These needs are met by Changing Places toilets. 

 

The Welsh Government has recently undertaken a consultation exercise on its proposals 

to increase the provision of Changing Places toilets and Baby Changing facilities in certain 

types of buildings and to revise the Approved Document M guidance on compliance with 

the Building Regulations (relating to access to and use of buildings). The proposals will 

allow local planning authorities to enhance the provisions of Changing Places toilets over 

and above the minimum requirement. 

 

The responses to this consultation are currently being reviewed by Welsh Government and 

details of the outcome will be published in due course. 

 

There are currently four Changing Places toilets in Carmarthenshire. These are located at 

Carmarthen (Cartrefi Cymru), Kidwelly (Parc Y Bocs Farm Shop and Café), Ammanford 

(Tesco) and a recently installed facility at Pembrey Ski and Activity Centre.  

 

  

Tudalen 37



 

8 
 

Further additional Changing Places toilets are planned at the following locations: 

 

Pendine (Caban) Hostel – this location will benefit from all specified equipment required for 

a Changing Places facility, however, due to layout restrictions, it is unable to meet the exact 

positional specification requirements. As such, this facility will not therefore be advertised 

as a full Changing Places unit. 

 

Two Changing Places facilities are planned at the new Pentre Awel / Wellness Centre at 

Llanelli. This is part of a large-scale development project with current indication of 

completion during early 2024.  

 

One further Changing Places unit is also planned within the ground floor of the Ffwrnes 

Theatre at Llanelli.   

 

Changing Place facilities will be expected as an integral aspect of the design of most new 

Council Buildings and venue facilities where general public access is provided.  Such a 

provision will be encouraged in other new non-Council owned public access buildings 

where appropriate.  

 

7. Charging – helping to eradicate social misuse and vandalism 

 

We are not experiencing any significant vandalism or social misuse in facilities which are 

not already subject to charging fees. Therefore, there is currently no intention to introduce 

charging mechanisms at additional locations. This situation will however be subject to 

ongoing review where the introduction of charging may be considered to deter misuse 

where continuous issues arise. 

 

8. Improve Communication and Information on available toilet facilities 

 

Detailed information on locations and opening times have been added to the 

Carmarthenshire County Council corporate website (public convenience map). Individual 

details at each location are displayed by clicking on the location icon. Detailed information 

is also provided via the Welsh Government’s Lle Mapping portal. 

 

Although the pandemic has delayed some of the marketing actions, the tourism sector is 

now fully open, and the County Council is undertaking a number of actions as part of its 

economic recovery plan 

 

It was anticipated that parts of the UK would be very busy from Easter 2021 onwards when 

the major lockdown restrictions were lifted and the possibility of areas bring overrun by the 

volume of tourists. To help manage the situation, the County Council set up a cross- 

departmental working group to meet on a weekly basis to manage the “Hot Spots” in 

Carmarthenshire and work together on resource allocation.  

  

Tudalen 38



 

9 
 

 

Part of the work undertaken was a customer satisfaction survey with over 400 face to face 

interviews being carried out. Overall responses were incredibly positive as to quality and 

enjoyment of experience. On the question "How would you rate the following aspects of 

your visit today?", 88% rated cleanliness of the public toilets as good or above. In the 

section on asking visitors what we could do to improve, and what visitors feel would improve 

their perception of future visits, people responded that better signage and interpretation of 

information boards would be beneficial.  

 

Our aim over Winter 2021 is to work with the newly formed 10 Towns working groups on 

the content and services required to be displayed on the information panels, which will be 

installed after conducting a customer flow analysis for each area. As identified in the visitor 

research, public toilets will be included and highlighted as a priority on these Visitor 

Information Points (VIP) signage. Draft examples of these Visitor Information Points (VIP) 

signage have now been produced for the majority of the towns within the County. 

 

A further key promotional channel is the Discover Carmarthenshire website which is 
currently being refreshed. Public convenience information will be displayed on each town 
webpage in addition to the respective activity pages such as walking and road cycling. 
 

9. To make available public toilet data on the Welsh Government Mapping Application 

(LLE National Map of toilets) 

 

Detailed information on available toilet facilities has been provided to the Lle National 

Map of Toilets. The information provided to the portal for each facility is as follows: 

 

 Location. 

 UPRN (Unique Property Reference Number). 

 Coordinates. 

 Post Codes. 

 Access notes (for example, whether any charges apply or whether there are any 

additional access factors such as steps). 

 Daily opening hours. 

 Off-peak season information (for example, change of opening hours and relevant 

times). 

 Bank Holiday opening times (if different from normal operating times). 

 Types of cubicles available (female / male / unisex / baby change / disabled (open 

access or whether RADAR key access) / changing places. 

 

https://datamap.gov.wales/maps/new?layer=inspire-wg:Toilets 

 

 

  

Tudalen 39

https://datamap.gov.wales/maps/new?layer=inspire-wg:Toilets


 

10 
 

 

10. Where appropriate, to consider the incorporation of toilet provision in accordance 

with planning policy and national planning guidance. 

 

As part of the preparation of the Revised Local Development Plan 2018 -2033 the intention 

has been to consider the opportunities for integrating guidance and policy requirements in 

respect of the provision of public facilities.  The content of guidance will inform the 

preparation of the Local Development Plan and the outcomes of its preparatory process 

will be reflected in future versions of the strategy.   Where appropriate, matters around the 

incorporation and provision of toilet facilities within developments will be considered in 

accordance with planning policy and national planning guidance. 

 

It is noted that the adoption of the Revised Local Development Plan has been delayed 

through the impacts arising from Covid-19 and the publication of Natural Resources Wales 

guidance on phosphate levels in identified protected Rivers.  An update schedule for 

adoption will be made available in due course. 

 

Next Steps 

 
In line with internal guidance and dependent on the current COVID-19 circumstances, a 

targeted approach will be made to encourage appropriate businesses to participate in the 

Community Toilet Scheme. It is anticipated that this scheme will provide an increase in the 

number of publicly accessible toilet facilities available in key areas of need. 

 

A continuous review will be undertaken of the currently identified toilet premises to include 

any   changes to opening times and types of facilities available. Suitable additional 

premises will also be added to the list of available toilets, for example, new buildings / toilet 

facilities, appropriate office facilities and the planned Community Toilet Scheme locations. 

 

The Local Toilets Strategy will be subject to formal review within a year of each ordinary 

election. The next election date in Wales is Thursday 5th May 2022. Therefore, the latest 

date for review of Carmarthenshire’s Local Toilets Strategy will be the 4th May 2023. 

 

Current List of Public Toilets 

  
The facilities shown below are only indicative of general toilet provision within the County. 

Additional toilets may be available to the public but are not included here because they are 

not advertised as such. In particular, there will be commercial premises which provide 

customer facilities. 

  

 

 
 

Tudalen 40



 

1 
 

APPENDIX A  Carmarthenshire current public toilet provision 

 
  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Ammanford, 
Carregamman Car 

Park 
SA18 3EL No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Carmarthen, John 
Street Car Park 

SA31 1QT No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Carmarthen, St. 
Peter's Car Park 

SA31 1LN No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Laugharne 
adjacent to Castle 

SA33 4SP No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Llandeilo Car Park SA19 6HL No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Llandovery  
Car Park 

SA20 0AB No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Llanelli adjacent to 
Town Hall 

SA15 3AH No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

T
udalen 41



 

2 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Llanelli  
East Gate  

Bus Station 
SA15 1SG No No Yes Yes No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

St. Clears Car Park SA33 4AG No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Abergorlech 
Village Centre 

SA32 7SN Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Alltwalis Village 
Centre 

SA32 7EB 
Yes 

 
Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Ammanford 
Central Park 

SA18 3BE Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No 

Ammanford Coop 
Car Park 

SA18 1DL Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No 

Brechfa  
Village Centre 

SA32 7RA Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Burry Port Railway 
Station 

SA16 0EP Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Cenarth SA38 9JL Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No 

T
udalen 42



 

3 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Cynwyl Elfed SA33 6TU Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Ferryside Beach 
Entrance 

SA17 5TD Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No 

Glanamman 
Cwmamman 

Square 
SA18 1DZ No No Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No 

Gorslas adjacent 
to Park 

SA14 7HP Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No 

Kidwelly Town 
Centre 

SA17 4UU Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Llanboidy Village 
Centre 

SA34 0EL Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Llanddowror 
Tenby Road 

SA33 4HJ No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Llanstephan Beach 
Car Park 

SA33 5JX Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No T
udalen 43



 

4 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Llanybydder 
Square 

SA40 9TX Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Meinciau adjacent 
to Community Hall 

SA17 5LE Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Newcastle Emlyn 
near Mart 

SA38 9AD Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Newcastle Emlyn 
Market Hall 

SA38 9AS No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Parry Thomas 
Centre Pendine 

Beach 
SA33 4NY Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Whitland West 
Street 

SA34 0AB Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Park Howard 
Llanelli 

SA15 3JQ Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Llanelli Market SA15 1YH Yes Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No No Yes No 

Carmarthen 
Market 

SA31 1QY Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

T
udalen 44



 

5 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Bristol House A48 SA4 0FS Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Meidrim  
Car Park 

SA33 5QL Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Llandybie SA18 3HY Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Penygroes SA14 7RP Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No Yes No 

Ffarmers SA19 8LQ Yes Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Ffaldybrenin SA19 8QR Yes Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Llansawel SA19 7JF Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Pembrey Country 
Park Ski Centre 

SA16 0EJ Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No Yes 

Cefn Sidan Beach 
Kiosk 

SA16 0EJ Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Ty Elwyn, Llanelli SA15 3AA Yes Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

T
udalen 45



 

6 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Yr Orsaf café, 
Pembrey Counrty 

Park (outside 
toilets) 

SA16 0EJ No No Yes No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Ffwrnes, Llanelli SA15 3YE Yes Yes No No No No Yes No No No Yes No No No No 

Lyric, Carmarthen SA31 1BD Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

St. Clears Leisure 
Centre 

SA33 4BT Yes Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No 

Newcastle Emlyn 
Leisure Centre 

SA38 9LN Yes Yes No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Municipal 
Buildings, 
Llandeilo 

SA19 6HW Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Carmarthen 
Leisure Centre 

SA31 3NQ Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Llanelli Leisure 
Centre 

SA15 3AE Yes Yes No No No No Yes No No No Yes No No No No 

Ammanford 
Library 

SA18 3DN Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

T
udalen 46



 

7 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Llandovery Library SA20 0AA No No No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Carmarthen 
Library 

SA31 1LN No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Amman Valley 
Leisure Centre 

SA18 2NP Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No No No Yes No No No No 

Llandovery 
Swimming Pool 

SA20 0DY Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No No No Yes No No No No 

Llanelli Library SA15 3AS No No No No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Burry Port Library  SA16 0AE No No No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

Llyn Llech Owain 
Country Park 

SA14 7NF Yes Yes No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Carmarthen Park SA31 3AX No No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No Yes No 

Adjacent to North 
Dock Discovery 

Centre 
Llanelli 

SA15 2LF No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No No No No 

T
udalen 47



 

8 
 

  Facilities available 

Name of Location Postcode 

M
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

Fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

U
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Baby change Disabled Changing places 
(incorporating adult 
changing facilities, 
hoists etc. for 
people with 
profound disabilities 
and their carers) m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

fe
m

al
e 

to
ile

t 

u
n

is
ex

 t
o

ile
t 

Se
p

ar
at

e 
to

 

to
ile

ts
 

d
is

ab
le

d
 t

o
ile

t Open access Locked (RADAR) 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

m
al

e 
o

n
ly

 

fe
m

al
e 

o
n

ly
 

u
n

is
ex

 

Pembrey Country 
Park 

Play Area Car Park 
SA16 0EJ No No Yes No No Yes No Yes No No Yes No No No No 

Burry Port 
Harbour (West) 

SA16 0ER No  No Yes No No No  No No No No Yes No No No No 

 
 
 
 

T
udalen 48



 
 

  

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
DIOGELU’R CYHOEDD A’R AMGYLCHEDD 

 
22 RHAGFYR 2021 

 

DATGANIAD GORFODI RHEOLAU CYNLLUNIO DRAFFT 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 

 

Ystyried diwygio Datganiad Gorfodi Rheolau Cynllunio'r Cyngor. 

 

Y Rhesymau:  
Mae adolygiad diweddar Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru o'r Gwasanaethau Cynllunio wedi tynnu 
sylw at yr ôl-groniad sylweddol o gwynion nad ydynt wedi eu datrys yng ngwasanaeth Gorfodi 
Rheolau Cynllunio Sir Gaerfyrddin.  Mewn ymateb i ganfyddiadau'r adroddiad, mae'r Cyngor 
yn adolygu'r modd y mae'n cyflawni ei gyfrifoldebau gorfodi.  
 
Datblygwyd y Datganiad Gorfodi presennol yn 2015. Yn dilyn hynny, mabwysiadwyd 
Datganiad Gorfodi Corfforaethol cyffredinol ym mis Ebrill 2018, felly mae angen adolygu'r 
Datganiad Gorfodi Rheolau Cynllunio gwreiddiol er mwyn ystyried y newidiadau yn yr 
amgylchedd mewnol ac allanol, ac ailsefydlu'r Datganiad Gorfodi Rheolau Cynllunio a sicrhau 
yr ymgynghorir yn briodol yn ei gylch a'i fod yn cael ei gymeradwyo.  
 
Mewn ymateb i'r galw cynyddol ar eu gwasanaethau, mae nifer o awdurdodau wedi adolygu 
eu dull o orfodi rheolau cynllunio er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn gallu ymateb i flaenoriaethau 
allweddol y Cyngor. 
 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad                          OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                           NAC OES 

YR AELOD O'R CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:  
Y Cyng. Phillip Hughes. Diogelu'r Cyhoedd.  

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Yr Amgylchedd 

Pennaeth Gwasaneth 

Noelwyn Daniel 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Sue Watts  

Swydd: 

 

 

Pennaeth Dros Dro Adran Cynllunio 

 

Rheolwr Gorfodi Materion Dros Dro 

Rhifau ffôn: / Cyfeiriadau 
E-bost: 

 
NDaniel@sirgar.gov.uk 

SEWatts@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

  

Tudalen 49

Eitem Rhif  6



 
 

  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC PROTECTION  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

DRAFT PLANNING ENFORCEMENT STATEMENT 

Background 
 

 The recent WAO review of Planning Services has highlighted the significant backlog of 
unresolved service requests within Carmarthenshire’s Planning Enforcement service.   
 

 In response to the findings of the report, the Council is reviewing how it carries out its 
enforcement responsibilities. 

 

 The current Enforcement Policy was developed in 2015. Subsequently, an overarching 
Corporate Enforcement Policy was adopted in April 2018, therefore there is a need to review 
the original Planning Enforcement Policy to take account of changes within both the internal 
and external environment and to re-establish as the Planning Enforcement Statement. 

 

 In response to an increasing demand being placed on their services, a number of authorities 
have reviewed their approach to planning enforcement to ensure that they are able to 
respond to key Council priorities. 
 

Context 
 

 There are currently 710 unresolved Planning service requests. 
 

 The numbers of service requests by the service have been increasing in recent years and 
has increased again as a result of period of Covid pandemic.  
 

 Since June 2021 and the work of the Intervention Board there has been a steady decline in 
the number of cases being submitted each month from an average of 50 per month to 29 in 
November 2021. The service has 5 members of staff. 
 

 The current commitment to investigate lower risk complaints means that there is insufficient 
resource to adequately investigate/progress high risk cases and some cases are not being 
investigated at all. 
 

 Other authorities have decided to prioritise its enforcement resources by for example, no 
longer investigating anonymous complaints.  

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 50



 
 

  

The Statement will provide; 
 

1. Clarification on what constitutes a breach and what does not.  
 

2. Review on current reporting mechanisms including the policy on service requests from 
anonymous complainants 
 

3. Information on the various stages of investigation and what to expect 
 

4. Identification of the Service Targets that the section is aiming to achieve 

 
5. Identifying the 3 Priorities depending on the seriousness of the alleged breach and the time 

scales that the service will aim to visit. 

 
6. Information on how the Authority manage compliments and complaints  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

REPORT ATTACHED? Draft Planning Enforcement Statement 

 
 

  

Tudalen 51



 
 

  

IMPLICATIONS 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report. 

Signed:  R Mullen     Director of Environment 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications  

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NONE  NONE  YES NONE  

 

  
Policy 

The draft statement outlines proposed changes to the Council’s approach to planning 
enforcement, and the type of issues that will no longer be investigated as a complaint. This 
will allow the Council to focus its resources on more high risk cases and adopt a more 
proactive approach in supporting the wider strategic planning agenda. This could have 
implications for other services such as Development Management linked to an increase in 
planning applications received.  

The revised statement will be supported by the completion an Integrated Impact 
Assessment exercise. 

Legal 

Planning Enforcement is a discretionary function. However, it is recognised that it plays a 
key role in development management and all Wales Planning Policy. The Statement 
outlines the objectives of the Authority in relation to Planning Enforcement.  The adoption 
of a more proactive approach to planning enforcement could have implications for the 
Council legal services in respect of more prosecution related work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance 

The adoption of a more proactive approach to planning enforcement could result in 
additional costs relating to remedial action to address enforcement breaches, some of which 
the Council may not be able to recover. Active and timely enforcement will result in planning 

/retrospective application and associated additional revenue. 

 

 
Staffing 

The draft statement aims to ensure that the Council is able to prioritise its resources to 
address high risk cases and a result some lower level enquiries will no longer be 
investigated. If the Council decides to continue with the investigation of these type of 
complaints, this will require further financial investment in the Planning Enforcement team. 
Planning Enforcement will create demands on other sections within the Authority such as 
the Development Management Section in relation to increase planning applications and the 
Legal Section in relation to pursuing relevant enforcement action.  

Tudalen 52



 
 

  

CONSULTATIONS 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed:  R Mullen         Director of Environment 

1. Local Member(s)  Yes 

2. Community / Town Council Yes 

3. Relevant Partners Yes 

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  N/A 

 

CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
AWARE/CONSULTED 

YES 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information - List of 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:  

THERE ARE NONE   

 

 
 

 

Tudalen 53



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Planning Enforcement 

Statement 
A guide to Planning Enforcement in Carmarthenshire 

December 2021 

carmarthenshire.gov.wales 

DRAFT 

Tudalen 55



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  2 | 16 

 

 
 
 
 
CONTENTS  
 
 
 
 
 Executive Summary 

 

3 

1. 
 

What is planning enforcement?  4 

2. 
 

What is, or is not a breach of planning control? 5 

3. 
 

The councils’ approach to planning enforcement  6 

4. 
 

How can an enforcement issue be reported? 7 

5. 
 

How will the council deal with your complaint?  8 

6. What if I am dissatisfied with the way the case was 
managed?  

12 

7. Publicity of the Plan and planning enforcement 
documents 

13 

8. 
 

Review and monitoring of this plan  13 

Appendix 1 Enforcement Powers 
 

14 

 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 56



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  3 | 16 

 

Executive Summary  
 
 
Enforcement is one of the most complex parts of the planning system and is an issue 
that concerns many members of the public, given the need to ensure that appropriate 
action is taken against unacceptable breaches of control in the wider public interest.  
 
While all valid complaints will always be investigated, it is not however always possible 
or expedient for the Authority to take action against unauthorised development. The aim 
of this Statement is therefore to establish a framework against which the public can 
expect from the delivery of the Planning Enforcement service by Carmarthenshire  
County Council.  
 
This Statement seeks to:-  
 
• Provide an overview of the planning enforcement system, including a summary of 
what may constitute a breach of planning control  

 

• Detail the enforcement processes and powers available to the Council  

 

• Identify policies and procedures which set out how the Carmarthenshire’s Planning 
Enforcement team will deal with enforcement complaints in a fair, reasonable and 
consistent manner  

 

• Detail the service standards that we strive to achieve to ensure that enforcement 
complaints are dealt with in a timely manner, and that complainants are advised of the 
outcome of such investigations at appropriate stages  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 57



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  4 | 16 

 

 
1. WHAT IS PLANNING ENFORCEMENT? 
 

Objectives 
 

The planning system operates to regulate development and the use of land in the public 
interest. Development plans, development management and enforcement make up the 
statutory planning process in Wales.  
 
Carmarthenshire County Council recognises the importance of an effective planning 
enforcement service in seeking to ensure that national and local planning policies are 
robustly and reasonably applied, and the integrity of the system is not undermined.  
 
Within this context, the primary objectives of our enforcement team are as follows: 

 To monitor major developments to ensure compliance with relevant conditions 

 To investigate valid reports of breaches of planning control, acting 
proportionately and reasonably  

 To remedy undesirable effects of unauthorised development; and  

 Taking action where appropriate and expedient to bring unauthorised 
development under control in the wider public interest.  

 

Planning Enforcement Officers  
 
The planning enforcement function of the council is carried out by the Council’s 
Planning Enforcement and Monitoring Officers within the Planning Division 
(Development Management) of the Environment Directorate. 
 

Framework and Guidance 
 
Planning legislation empowers the council to control and manage development and use 
of land and buildings in the public interest. These powers are set out, principally, in the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (“the Act”) and The Planning 
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The legislation defines what can be 
considered as ‘development’ and sets out the processes for enforcing against 
unauthorised development.  
  
Welsh Government Policy on planning enforcement is set out in section 3.6 of Planning 
Policy Wales (PPW). National policy guidance was formerly set out in Technical Advice 
Note (TAN) 9: Enforcement of Planning Control (1997),but is now included in the 
Development Management Manual*, incorporating where appropriate the guidance on 
changes introduced by the Planning (Wales) Act 2015. This provides guidance on when 
enforcement action is appropriate.  
 
* https://gov.wales/development-management-manual 
 
 
The Council has a discretionary role for taking whatever enforcement action 
is necessary within its area as the Local Planning Authority. The Section will consider 

Tudalen 58

https://gov.wales/development-management-manual


Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  5 | 16 

 

enforcement under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and legislation made 
thereunder. Further to this, any action taken by the planning enforcement team must be 
led by the Council’s Development Plan (presently the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan adopted in December 2014). 
 

2. WHAT IS, OR IS NOT A BREACH OF PLANNING 
CONTROL?  
 

 A breach of planning control could involve such matters as the unauthorised erection of 
a building or extension to a building, engineering operations, a ‘material’ change of use 
of land, or the display of unauthorised advertisements and works to listed buildings. 
Additionally, a failure to comply with a condition on planning permission may be 
relevant to planning enforcement. Residents often report issues to the Council which, 
although they relate to buildings or land, are not always covered under planning 
enforcement powers. Below is a guide to the complaints which can, and cannot, 
be investigated by planning enforcement. For the purposes of this Plan, a breach of 
planning control is used in the general sense and may include other matters which fall 
outside the Act.  
  

Planning enforcement issues  
 

 Unauthorised works to listed buildings;  

 Unauthorised Demolition of buildings or structures in a conservation area;  

 Unauthorised Works to trees subject of a Tree Preservation Order (“TPO”) or any 
trees in a conservation area;  

 Unauthorised Building works (i.e. extensions, outbuildings, fences, walls);  

 Unauthorised Change of use of buildings and/or land without planning 
permission (inc. sub-division of houses to flats / Houses in Multiple Occupation 
or residential caravans) where the change of use is not permitted development*;  

 Unauthorised advertisements and signage;  

 Non-compliance with conditions attached to planning permissions;  

 Not building in accordance with the approved plans of planning permissions;  

 Unauthorised Engineering operations, such as raising of ground levels or 
earth bunds;  

 Deliberate concealment of unauthorised building works or changes of use  

 Unauthorised mineral extraction 

 Unauthorised treatment or disposal of waste  

  
   
  

Non-planning enforcement issues  
 

 Internal works to a building.  This does not include listed buildings; (possibly 
Building Regulations) 

 Parking of commercial vehicles on the highway or on grass verges;  

 Land ownership/boundary disputes or trespass issues; (Civil issue) 

 Infringements of covenants in property deeds; (Civil issue) 

Tudalen 59



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  6 | 16 

 

 Temporary structures/fencing associated with building works; (Highways 
Section) 

 Dangerous structures or other health and safety issues; (Building 
Regulations/HSE) 

 Running a business from home where activities do not include employees and 
the main use is still residential;  

 Devaluing of property; (Civil) 

 Issues relating to party walls (Civil)  

 Issues relating to damage of property or (potential) injury to 
persons (Housing/civil) 

 Invasive non-native plants (civil unless the plants originate from Local Authority 
land) 

  
3. THE COUNCIL’S APPROACH TO PLANNING 
ENFORCEMENT  
 

Determining whether action should be considered 
 
Planning Policy Wales states that an effective Development Management process 
requires Local Planning Authorities to be prepared to take enforcement action in 
appropriate circumstances. The Council has a discretionary role for taking whatever 
enforcement action is necessary within its area as the Local Planning Authority.  The 
decisive issue is to consider whether the breach of planning control would unacceptably 
affect public amenity or the existing use of land and buildings meriting protection in the 
public interest. Officers will have regards to the Council’s Enforcement Policy. 
Welsh Government guidance emphasises that: -  

 Any enforcement action should be commensurate with the breach of planning 
control to which it relates;  

 The intention should be to remedy the effects of the breach of planning control, 
not to punish the person(s) responsible for the breach;  

 It is usually inappropriate to take formal enforcement action against a trivial or 
technical breach of control which causes no harm to public amenity; and  

 Enforcement action should not be taken simply to regularise development for 
which permission had not been sought but which is otherwise acceptable.  

 
When investigating an alleged breach of planning control, therefore, the Authority 
always seeks to ensure that decisions are taken concerning the most appropriate way 
forward in an effective and timely manner. This does not, however, mean that formal 
action will be taken. Indeed such action is limited to the most serious cases where harm 
arises and action is warranted in the public interest.  
In the majority of cases, even where breaches are identified, we will seek to resolve 
these informally, which may include: -  
 

 Informal negotiation with an owner / developer to remove a breach, or to make 
changes to a development such that it no longer constitutes a breach, or no 
longer causes material harm;  

Tudalen 60



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  7 | 16 

 

 Seeking the submission of a planning application to regularise a breach, which 
may include the need to comply with conditions to mitigate any harm caused by 
the development;  

 Concluding that no harm arises from the breach, such that it is not expedient for 
the Council to take the matter further.  

  

How Do We Determine when it is, or is not, ‘Expedient’ to Take Action?  
 

When we investigate complaints, and these are found to require planning permission (‘a 
breach of planning’) or a breach of condition, we will undertake an initial assessment to 
determine whether the development would be acceptable judged against the Policies 
within the Council’s adopted Local Development Plan. Although the nature of such 
assessment will vary depending on the breach, this may involve consideration of 
matters including: - the principle of development; and the impact on visual amenity / 
local character, highway safety, and residential amenity.  
 
Where we feel that such development is likely to be acceptable, or could be made 
acceptable by condition, we would usually seek submission of an application to 
regularise development.  
 
There will often be cases, however, where the nature of the breach is considered to 
have no unacceptable impacts, and we will conclude that it would not be ‘expedient’ in 
the public interest to take any action (including requiring submission of an application). 
An example may be where a boundary enclosure technically exceeds the ‘permitted 
development’ limit but causes no demonstrably adverse impact on neighbouring 
amenity. In such cases, we will inform complainants of our conclusions and close the 
investigation.  
 
In such ‘non expediency’ cases, we appreciate that complainants will not always agree 
with our decision. Officers will, however, always be happy to explain the reasoning 
behind such conclusions with a complainant. Should a complainant remain dissatisfied 
with such a response, Section 6 of this Statement explains how they may progress such 
complaint.  
  
4. How can an enforcement issue be reported?  
 
If you believe there to be a planning breach, in order for the planning enforcement team 
to investigate your complaint you must formally submit a complaint. This is necessary in 
order for us to obtain a full picture of the situation and avoid allocating resources to 
enquiries which cannot be taken further.  
 
You may make a service request:  
• Verbally by calling the Council’s Customer Services Team  
• Online via the Planning Enforcement online complaints submission page  
  
All service requests are required to provide their full name, a phone number, 
postal address and email address.  
 

Tudalen 61



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  8 | 16 

 

Anonymous service request will not be investigated (unless the complaint is clearly of a 
serious service nature, including demolition in conservation areas, works to TPO trees, 
works to listed buildings). This is to ensure that public resources are not spent 
unnecessarily investigating hoax or malicious service request. It is also important that, 
should legal action become necessary in relation to a complaint, the Council can state 
in court that the matter was reported by a local resident. All details provided by 
a complainant will always remain totally confidential, unless the information is required 
for use as evidence in court. If this does happen, the Council will make all reasonable 
efforts to inform you before disclosing any information. We may also need to contact 
you prior to any site inspection being carried out to seek further information or 
clarification from you regarding the details of the alleged breach.  
It may be the case that the development in question does not require planning 
permission and therefore cannot be enforced against. You are strongly advised, prior to 
submitting any enquiry, to check whether the particular development or activity which 
is causing you concern already benefits from planning permission or falls within 
permitted development category. This information can be found on our website .  
  
To help us deal with your case as soon as possible it is important to provide as much 
information as you can. Below is a list of the type of information that would assist us in 
dealing with your complaint:   

 An accurate description of the location or address for the particular site;  

 A detailed description of the activities taking place and why they are cause 
for concern;  

 Names, addresses, phone numbers and email addresses of those persons 
responsible for the alleged breach or the land owners;  

 The date and times of when the alleged breach took place;  

 Any other information or evidence (including photos) that may be able to assist;  

 Your name and contact details as set out above.  

  

5. How will the Council deal with your service 
request?  
 
Our investigation into a service request can be broken down into the following stages. 
The appropriate service standards based on the Welsh Government’s current 
expectations for delivery of the enforcement service are identified at each stage: -  
 
STAGE ONE: Registration and Acknowledgement  
 
Upon receiving a service request with supporting evidence the Authority will:  

 Register the complaint in the Council’s Enforcement System  

 Check that we have all the necessary information to investigate the service 
request and, if not, make further contact with the complainant  

 Prioritise complaints based on the ‘Prioritisation Scheme’.  

 Acknowledge service request in writing within 5 working days from receipt (by 
email), providing:-  

 
- The Enforcement Case reference number  
- The name and contact details of the investigating Enforcement Officer  

Tudalen 62



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  9 | 16 

 

- The Priority assigned to the case  
- Details of this Enforcement Charter  

 

SERVICE TARGET 1: Service request are registered and acknowledged within 5 
working days of receipt – Target 100%. 
 
STAGE TWO: Investigation Phase  
 

Following registration and acknowledgement of a service request we will: -  
 
1. Undertake any relevant initial research (a ‘desktop study’) which may assist in 
identifying whether the complaint constitutes unauthorised ‘development’ (as defined 
under Section 55 of the Planning Act 1990 (as amended));  
 
2. Determine whether a site visit is necessary visit to gather information and evidence 
relating to the alleged breach of planning control. Where this is the case, the officer may 
take photographs from the site or adjoining land;  
 
3. Depending on the seriousness of the alleged breach and available resources the 
target time for our initial investigation will be as follows: -  
 
• Priority 1: Serious service request, including demolition in conservation areas, works 
to TPO trees, works to listed buildings. We will visit within 3 working days.  
 
• Priority 2: All other service request, such as extensions to buildings and unauthorised 
changes in the use of a building. We will visit within 10 working days.  
 
• Priority 3: Minor service request where planning rules may not have been kept 
to, such as minor alterations to the outside of a building, or other minor developments 
such as satellite dishes, advertisements, walls, gates and fences. We will visit within 15 
working days.  
 
4. Where contact with either the complainant or the person who has carried out 
development without planning permission is necessary, officers will seek to contact the 
complainant / owner / developer by phone, letter or visit. Officers will utilise access 
powers where necessary.  
 
5. Where relevant, contact the alleged offender to discuss the allegations and seek any 
relevant information relating to the alleged breach of control to inform the investigation  
 
6. If adequate information is unavailable, undertake further site visits if necessary to 
gain further information and/or evidence, or contact a complainant to assist in the 
collation of any necessary evidence (for example to record activities where an alleged 
breach relates to a business activity from a residential property)  
 
7. Following the site inspection, undertake any necessary further research into the 
planning history or other relevant sources, for example ownership details, aerial 
photography and records from other Council services such as Building Control and 
Council Tax. Officers may also serve a Planning Contravention Notice (PCN) which 
requires person(s) to provide information pertaining to the alleged breach.  
 

Tudalen 63



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  10 | 16 

 

8. In accordance with the Welsh Government’s ‘Planning Performance Framework’ 
reach one of the following formal conclusions on the ‘investigation stage’: -  
 
A. That there has not been a Breach of Planning Control;  
 
B. That there has been a Breach, but it would not be expedient to pursue further action 
in the public interest ; 
 
Even where a breach has been identified, it may not be expedient to take action against 
a development that Officer’s consider to be acceptable, when assessed against policy 
and guidance and to not cause any harmful impact upon public amenity.  
 
C. That a breach has occurred, and action is expedient  
This could be either through the submission of a planning application to regularise 
development with conditions, potential use of a breach of condition notice or the service 
of an Enforcement Warning Notice (EWN);  
 
D. That a valid planning application has been received in respect of the development in 
question  
 
Where it appears to officers that there is a reasonable prospect that planning 
permission would be granted for the development, the planning enforcement team will 
encourage submission of a retrospective planning application. The person will also be 
advised to cease any work or use until permission has been granted.  
 
9. Notify the complainant(s) in writing of the outcome of the investigation phase, 
including information on the next stages of the investigation where relevant.  
 
10. Where relevant, notify the owner / developer of the conclusions of the investigation 
phase, including details of the next stage of the investigation where a breach of 
planning has been identified and it is expedient to pursue the matter further  
 
SERVICE TARGET 2: Enforcement cases complainants are notified in writing of the 
outcome of the ‘Investigation Phase’ within 12 weeks (84 days) of receipt – Target 80%  
 
 
The remaining 20% will be presumed to be ‘ongoing investigations’ who will be notified 
of the position on the case and some advisory timeframe provided. 
 
STAGE THREE: ‘Positive Action’ Stage  
 
Where Officers have decided that a breach has occurred and it is (or would be) 
expedient to take action, the Council will then seek to resolve the breach through one of 
the following ‘positive actions’: -  
 
 
 
 
 
A. Removal of the breach through informal negotiation  

Tudalen 64



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  11 | 16 

 

 
The purpose of the enforcement system is not to punish an offender, but to remedy a 
breach of planning in the wider public interest. Officers will therefore usually seek, 
wherever possible, to informally negotiate a solution to a breach of planning control.  
In considering this, it is important to bear in mind that it is unlawful to carry out 
development but not an offence without first obtaining any planning permission 
required for it. In line with guidance in Planning Policy Wales (PPW), the Local Planning 
Authority should first attempt to resolve breaches of planning control informally through 
negotiation with the land owner, occupier or developer.  
Formal action by the Council will be used where it is an appropriate and proportionate 
response or used in situations where an immediate solution is necessary in the 
interests of public amenity.  
 
B. Serve Notice in respect of the Alleged Breach;  
 
Where a breach is found which is considered to be a high priority due to its harmful 
effect upon public amenity, and negotiation has been unable to remedy such harm, 
authorisation will be sought to take formal enforcement action through service of an 
Enforcement Notice or other appropriate Notice.  
In line with PPW, enforcement action taken by the council will always be commensurate 
with the breach of planning control to which it relates. In addition, the council will only 
take action where it is appropriate to do so – for example, it would normally be 
inappropriate to take formal enforcement action against a trivial or technical breach of 
planning control.  
Where formal action is to be taken against small businesses and self-employed 
persons, such action will in normal circumstances only be taken once informal 
discussions have been unable to remedy the breach. When setting periods for 
compliance with formal Notices, the Council will seek to be reasonable having regard to 
individual circumstances, weighed against the harm to the public interest.  
In all cases of formal enforcement action, careful consideration will be made of the 
impact on the human rights of affected parties.  
  

The most appropriate Notice will be used to remedy the harm being caused. Where 
authorised, this could take one of the following forms: -  

 Enforcement Notice (Operational Development or Material Change of Use)  

 Stop Notice (including Temporary Stop Notice)  

 Section 215 Notice (‘Amenity Notice’)  

 Breach of Condition Notice  

 Listed Building Enforcement Notice 

 Injunctions 
 

See below for more detail of the enforcement powers for the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Details of Enforcement Notices, Breach of Condition Notices, Temporary Stop Notices 
and Stop Notices are entered into an Enforcement Register. The Register is available 
upon request. 
 
C. Planning permission is subsequently granted through an application (or 
following an appeal against service of an Enforcement Notice);  
 

Tudalen 65



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  12 | 16 

 

D. By Taking Prosecution Action (e.g. against unauthorised display of an 
advertisement, or Unauthorised Works to a Listed Building)  
 
Please note that in a small number of cases a complainant may be asked to assist the 
Council by providing evidence at an appeal or in Court. Before this happens the Case 
Officer will ask for their consent. If they are unwilling to give consent it is possible that 
the Authority would be unable to take further action.  
  

Prosecutions for not complying with the notice does not compel compliance, but rather 
punishes non-compliance. Where there has been financial gain as a result of a criminal 
act of not complying with an extant notice, the Council will consider taking further action 
under the terms of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (“POCA”).  
 
 
E. By the Authority taking Direct Action to remove the breach of control.  
 
Although the costs of ‘direct action’ can be placed as a charge on land, it is often 
difficult to recover such costs. Therefore any decision to take such action will always be 
a final resort, and will have regard to the costs involved weighed against the degree of 
ongoing harm. 
 
 
SERVICE TARGET 3: ‘Positive Action’ (as defined above) is taken on cases where 
action has been deemed expedient within 180 days of the ‘investigation date’. Target 
80%. Where such action has not been possible, the complainant will be notified in 
writing of the reasons for any delay in taking action. 
 
 STAGE FOUR: Closure of Case  

 
For positive actions (A) (C) and (E) above, the case will be formally closed and the 
complainant notified in writing.  
For all other cases, the Breach of Planning will only be resolved once any formal Notice 
has been complied with through removal of the breach or, for example, an unauthorised 
advertisement has been removed.  
Unfortunately, the timescale for ‘final resolution’ of such cases can take a considerable 
amount of time, and is often dependent on factors outside the control of the Authority, 
such as the time taken for determination of an appeal and subsequent compliance 
periods. It can also need the Authority to take Prosecution Action against an offence.  
For this reason, the Welsh Government indicators for enforcement no longer set ‘target 
dates’ for closure of enforcement cases. The Authority will, however, always seek to 
ensure final resolution of enforcement cases at the earliest opportunity and will pursue 
all appropriate and reasonable action to secure resolution. The complainant will be 
notified of the progress every 3 months where the cases are of longer duration. 
The Authority will also always notify a complainant in writing once the enforcement case 
has been resolved / closed.  
 
SERVICE TARGET 4: Complainants are notified in writing within 5 working days of a 
decision being made to close an enforcement investigation – Target 100%. 
 
 

Tudalen 66



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  13 | 16 

 

6.What if I am dissatisfied with the way the case was 
managed? 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the way the investigation is/has been managed (rather than 
being unhappy with the outcome if it has been decided that no action can be taken), 
you should, in the first instance, raise these concerns with the relevant manager within 
the planning service. If, having done that, you are still dissatisfied with the team’s 
handling of your enquiry; you may submit a complaint using the Council’s corporate 
procedure which is set out in two stages.   
Complaints and Compliments Team   
County Hall  
Carmarthen   
SA31 1JP   
Click to copy email address: complaints@carmarthenshire.gov.uk   
01267 234567   
  
If, having received the Council’s final response to your complaint, you are still not 
satisfied with the outcome; you can refer the matter to the Local Government 
Ombudsman via www.lgo.org.uk/make-a-complaint . Please note The Ombudsman will 
not investigate any complaint until the complainant has first followed the Council’s own 
corporate complaints procedure and sought resolution directly with the council in the 
first instance.  
  

7. Publicity of this plan and planning 
enforcement documents  
 
This plan will be available on the Council’s website. Hard copies and other formats and 
languages can be requested in writing.  
  

8. Review and monitoring of this plan  
 
In formulating this plan the Council recognises the need to make sure that it is reviewed 
periodically and updated as necessary to ensure that it remains fit for purpose in the 
future. The planning department will therefore undertake a review of the plan every time 
there is a significant change in the legislation (including caselaw) or the development 
plan policies.  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 67

mailto:complaints@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
tel:01267%20234567


Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  14 | 16 

 

APPENDIX 1 : The Enforcement Powers  
 
The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 defines taking formal "enforcement action" 
as the issue of an Enforcement Notice or the service of a Breach of Condition Notice. 
Failure to comply with either constitutes an offence.  
There are also a number of supplementary powers granted to the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) that allow other types of notice to be served. Failure to comply with 
these notices is also an offence.  
A summary of the main enforcement powers available to the Local Planning Authority 
are detailed below: -  
 
1. Planning Contravention Notice (PCN)  
A Planning Contravention Notice can be served in respect of any suspected breach of 
planning, and enables the Authority to require detailed information to inform its 
investigation, including: -  
• details of all operations being carried out on the land which might be suspected as 
being a breach of planning control;  
• matters relating to the conditions or limitations subject to which any planning 
permission has been granted;  
• names and addresses of any person known to use the land for any purpose; and  
• the nature of any legal interest in the land and the names and addresses of any other 
person known to have an interest.  
 
The service of a PCN does not stop the Authority taking other formal action against a 
breach of planning control.  
The recipient of a PCN has 21 days to respond to it. Failure to reply to a PCN (or 
making a false or misleading statement within a response) is an offence against which 
prosecution action can be taken.  
 
2. Enforcement Warning Notice (EWN)  
Introduced in Wales by the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, an Enforcement Warning Notice 
can be issued by a LPA where the Authority considers that, subject to the imposition of 
conditions, there is a reasonable prospect that, if an application for planning permission 
in respect of the unauthorised development were made, planning permission would be 
granted.  
An EWN will give a specified period within which time an application must be made, 
after which time enforcement action may otherwise be pursued.  
The issue of an Enforcement Warning Notice will ‘stop the clock’ in terms of the 
unauthorised development potentially gaining immunity from enforcement action.  
 
3. Enforcement Notice (EN)  
Where the LPA determines that it is expedient to take formal enforcement action 
against a breach of planning in the wider public interest, it may issue an Enforcement 
Notice.  
An Enforcement Notice may allege an unauthorised material change of use of land or 
buildings, operational development or breach of a condition.  
The Enforcement Notice must specify the time at which it takes effect, what steps must 
be undertaken to remedy the breach and a time period in which those steps must be 
undertaken.  

Tudalen 68



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  15 | 16 

 

An appeal against an Enforcement Notice (which can be made on planning or legal 
grounds) must be made before the date on which the Notice takes effect (normally 
within 28 days of service). If an appeal is made, the requirements of the Notice are 
suspended until the appeal has been decided.  
Once a Notice comes into effect, there is a further period of time to allow for 
compliance. The length of time depends on the nature of the breach.  
Failure to comply with an Enforcement Notice is a criminal offence and can lead to a 
fine of up to £20,000.  
 
4. Listed Building Enforcement Notice  
Similar to an Enforcement Notice, such Notice relates to unauthorised works to a Listed 
Building and may:-  
(a) require the building to be brought back to its former state; or  
(b) if that is not reasonably practicable or desirable, require other works specified in the 
Notice to alleviate the effects of the unauthorised works; or  
(c) require the building to be brought into the state it would have been in if the terms of 
any listed building consent had been observed.  
The Notice must specify time constraints for securing compliance with the requirements 
of the Notice.  
There is a right of appeal against a Listed Building Enforcement Notice. The procedures 
are similar to those for an appeal against an Enforcement Notice.  
If works subject to a Listed Building Enforcement Notice are later authorised by a 
retrospective application for Listed Building consent, the Listed Building Enforcement 
Notice will cease to have any effect although the liability to prosecution for an offence 
committed before the date of any retrospective consent remains.  
 
5. Breach of Condition Notices (BCN)  
A BCN may be served where a condition attached to a planning permission is not being 
complied with. The BCN will specify the steps which the LPA require to be taken in 
order to secure compliance with the condition as is specified in the notice.  
There is no right of appeal against a BCN (although the Authority's decision to issue a 
Breach of Condition Notice can be challenged in the Courts) and failure to comply 
constitutes a criminal offence which can be prosecuted, which can lead to a significant 
fine.  
 
6. Stop Notices (SN)  
In certain cases, a Stop Notice can be served in order to cease an unauthorised activity 
on the land. A Stop Notice can only be served at the same time as, or after, the service 
of an Enforcement Notice, and is usually restricted to the most urgent and harmful 
breaches of planning control, with a LPA at risk of compensation if it is used in 
inappropriate cases.  
There is no right of appeal against a Stop Notice, only the Enforcement Notice to which 
it is attached.  
Failure to comply with a Stop Notice can lead to a substantial fine of up to £20,000.  
 
7. Temporary Stop Notice  
Since June 20155 LPAs in Wales have been able to issue Temporary Stop Notices 
which can require that an activity which is a breach of planning control should stop 
immediately.  

Tudalen 69



Carmarthenshire Planning Enforcement Statement 2021 - DRAFT 
 

P a g e  16 | 16 

 

5 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (Commencement No. 14 and Saving) 
Order 2015.  
A Temporary Stop Notice does not have to be issued with an Enforcement Notice, and 
ceases to have effect after 28 days. Such Notice should only be issued when the LPA 
believes that the breach should be stopped immediately.  
 
8. Section 215 ‘Amenity’ Notices (s215)  
Where the condition of land is adversely affecting the amenity of the area, the LPA may 
serve a notice under s215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requiring the 
proper maintenance of land.  
Section 215 will be considered where untidy land is affecting 5 or more properties in 
that area. Where a property is found to be in disrepair, the Authority will seek to find an 
alternative option such as liaising with the owners to bring the home back into use. 
The s215 Notice will specify the steps that the LPA require to be taken in order to 
remedy the condition of the land.  
There is a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate against a s215 Notice.  
Failure to comply with a s215 Notice is an offence  
 
9. Injunction  
If an authority considers that a breach of planning control is sufficiently serious, and is 
causing or likely to cause exceptional harm, it may apply to the Courts for a restraint 
injunction. Those in breach of an injunction can be imprisoned.  
 
10. Prosecution Action  
As referred to above, where someone is in breach of the requirements of an 
Enforcement Notice, Breach of Condition Notice, or a Stop Notice, they are guilty of an 
offence and the planning enforcement service can initiate prosecution proceedings.  
In addition, the LPA may also instigate prosecution proceedings against offences such 
as:-  
• Display of Advertisement without Express Consent  
• Unauthorised Works to Protected Trees  
• Unauthorised Works to a Listed Building  
• Non-Compliance with a PCN or s215 Notice  
 
Prosecution action will always be dependent on legal advice that there is a reasonable 
prospect of success, and that it is in the public interest to pursue such action.  
In some cases, it may be determined that a ‘Simple Caution’ can be issued, where 
there is evidence of an offence, the offender has admitted the offence, and mitigation is 
taken into account having regard to the public interest test.  
 
11. Direct Action  
The Authority can also enter the site and carry out the works required by the Notice in 
default and then seek to recover its costs from the owner/occupier. 

Tudalen 70



 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC PROTECTION  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

22ND DECEMBER 2021 
 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS  
for next meeting to be held on 1st February 2021 

In order to ensure effective Scrutiny, Members need to be clear as to the purpose of requesting specific 
information and the outcome they are hoping to achieve as a consequence of examining a report.   

Proposed  
Agenda Item  

Background 
 

Reason for report 
 

Cabinet Member 

Revenue 
Budget 
Consultation  
2022/23 – 
2024/25 

 

As part of the Council’s 
consultation procedures on the 
development of its 2022/23 – 
2024/25 budget strategy, all 
scrutiny committees are 
provided with the opportunity of 
considering commenting on the 
Strategy. 
 

To enable the scrutiny 
committee to consider and 
comment on the budget 
settlement, departmental 
service budgets and 
efficiency savings proposals 
and to make any 
recommendations for 
change to the Cabinet and 
Council 

Cllr David 
Jenkins 

 
Departmental 
Business 
Plans  

 

As part of the Business Plan 
Development process the 
Committee is invited to consider 
and comment on the 
Environment, Communities and 
Chief Executive Departmental 
Business Plans 2022/23 – 
2023/24 relevant to its remit. 
 

To afford the Committee the 
opportunity of commenting 
on and making any 
recommendations for 
changes to the 
Departmental Business 
Plans in respect of 
Environment, Communities, 
Chief Executive relevant to 
its remit. 

Cllr Hazel Evans 
Cllr Philip Hughes 
Cllr Ann Davies 

 
  

Tudalen 71

Eitem Rhif  7



 

 

Items to be circulated under a separate cover to Scrutiny Committee members 
(as agreed at the Committee’s Forward Work Programme development session on 9th April 2021.) 

Proposed Agenda 
Item  

Background 
 

Reason for report 
 

Cabinet 
Member 

Local Environment 
Quality 

 

This report sets out how the 
Waste and Environmental 
Services Division of the 
Environment Department 
undertakes litter management 
activity for public spaces within 
its portfolio. 
 
 
 

To enable members to 
exercise their scrutiny role. 

Cllr. Hazel 
Evans 

Budget Monitoring 
Report 
[April to October 
2021] 

This is a standard bi-monthly 
budget report covering the 
revenue and capital budgets 
for the Environment 
Department, Public Protection 
Services and Community 
Safety which fall within the 
remit of the Environmental and 
Public Protection Scrutiny 
Committee 

To enable members to 
exercise their scrutiny role 

Cllr. David 
Jenkins 

 
  

Tudalen 72



 

 

Items circulated to the Committee under separate cover since the last 
meeting held on 25th November 2021 

(in accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Programme) 

 
In line with the Environmental and Public Protection Committee’s decision to receive and 
scrutinise reports outside of the formal committee process, the following reports were 
forwarded to all members of the Scrutiny Committee by e-mail on 2nd December 2021: 
 

 Budget Monitoring Report (1st April 2021 – 30th August 2021) Click here to view. 
 
The following queries were raised in relation to the abovementioned report:-  

 

Question Cabinet Member  

1. Reference to Sustainable Drainage approval Body Unit (SAB) [Page 9]. -  
£63k income not generated.  Is the income fixed per development or can 
developer negotiate out of these fees?  
 
The range of Sustainable Drainage (SuDS) fees are based on the size of 
development in hectares. There are no negotiations entered into on any terms 
because SuDS application fees are determined using a set of area based 
calculation formulas provided through the regulations by WG. Essentially, the 
bigger the development the bigger the fee up to a maximum limit.  
Appendix A is an extract from the Charging Digest which provides details of the 
fees.  

 
1.b) Has income not matched expectation because less developments have 

taken place or are their other factors at work? 
 

The Sustainable Drainage Approval Body is a statutory function introduced 
through WG legislation in 2018 and promoted as being principally self-funding. 
An income target of £165k was set based on an assumption of 300 SAB 
applications being received per year however this income target has not been 
achieved since the introduction of these charges.  As the size of developments 
and the number of developments are difficult to predict it is not surprising that 
former forecasts have not been achieved.  However, the predicted number of 
300 SuDS application per year was a reasonable estimate given that approx. 
1,100 planning applications had been identified as requiring a SuDS application 
over the past 3 years.  It would be expected that the number of SuDS 
applications should mirror planning application numbers, at least partially at say 
60% to 70%, certainly far more closely than has been experienced since 
implementation of the SuDS legislation back in Jan 2019.  
 

The difference between the number of projects identified as needing to submit 
a SuDS application and the number of actual applications received is remarkably 
high, ie. approximately 220 received compared to about 1100 planning 
application identified through the planning consultation process as requiring a 
SuDS application.  In reality, not all planning applications are constructed and 
there is a 5-year period in which to commence works (potentially causing a time 
lag). However, the lack of SuDS applications is worrying compared to the 
number of planning applications. We have undertaken random checks of 
developments based on building regulation submissions but have found no 
unauthorised site activity.  
 

 
Councillor David 
Jenkins, Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

Tudalen 73

https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s56929/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20-%20EPP%20November%202021.pdf
https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s56929/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20-%20EPP%20November%202021.pdf


 

For information, this SuDS Application trend is being experienced throughout 
the 22 Welsh LA’s. Reluctance and ignorance, whether deliberate or 
unintentional may, in part be an attributable factor. A lack of awareness on the 
part of key stakeholders in the planning process throughout Wales should not 
be alluded to, since WG and SAB bodies have been very active in providing 
guidance and advice. Another probable factor at play might be the lack of 
specialist expertise available to applicants. Hence, there may be a backlog due 
to supply issues. 
 
The estimated income for the year included in the budget monitoring report at 
the end of August, was £55k (£25k of income had already been received and 
we projected another £30k to year-end.)  Previous years’ income has been £27k 
in 2019/20 and £42k in 2020/21, therefore, even though we are predicting an 
increase year-on-year, it is highly unlikely that we’ll receive the original estimate. 

 

2. Reference to parking fees [Page 10].  
What is the plan to claw back income from car parks??  
 
The following reimbursements have been received from WG for the loss of 
parking fees: 

 £ 
Loss of income Claim Q1 2020/21  -701,000  
Loss of income Claim Q2 2020/21  -277,280  
Loss of income Claim Q3 2020/21  -248,601  
Loss of income Claim Q4 2020/21  -485,307  
Loss of income Claim Q1 2021/22 -174,617  
Loss of income Claim Q2 2021/22 -125,877  

Grand Total -2,012,682  

 

Quarters 2 and 3 of 2021/22 will be reimbursed by WG at a similar level. 
 

Councillor David 
Jenkins, Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

2.b How do we square the need to significantly increase use of public 
transport and sustainable modes of travel with car use? 

 
The Council’s Parking strategy sets out the need to account for the important 
economic role that parking plays in supporting town centres and revenue 
generated from parking helps sustain key infrastructure and public transport to 
provide sustainable travel options. The Wales Transport Strategy recognises the 
need for increased investment in public transport and active travel by 2040 to 
reduce car usage.  Once investment levels by Government are in place to 
provide people with the more sustainable travel options our parking strategy will 
be reviewed and updated.  
 
The Parking Strategy has been e-mailed to Members for information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor David 
Jenkins, Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

Tudalen 74

https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s56929/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20-%20EPP%20November%202021.pdf


 

Question Cabinet Member  

3. Reference to property maintenance and design [Page 10].  
Significant income based on increase in internal charging. This seems like 
moving money from departments inside authority. Has this had a 
detrimental impact on other deps budgets? i.e. overspends due to 
unforeseen charges from this department or has the income come from 
additional grants/government pots to pay for the maintenance and design 
work? 
 
The surplus of £302k equates to 0.73% of the total estimated income of £41m 
for the 2021/22 financial year, therefore it is not significant but relatively modest 
when compared to the Property Maintenance section’s overall turnover. There 
is a variable amount of work year on year and the Property Maintenance section 
might generate surpluses in one year but deficits in another which the business 
unit would have to bear if, for whatever reason, the income target was not met. 
The charges are set to cover overheads and a very small element is built into 
the job costings to allow for unforeseen unproductive time with the onset of covid 
a good, if not a little extreme, example of when the business unit couldn’t 
generate income due to strict covid measures.  
 

The fees and costs are charged to grants, capital and HRA expenditure codes. 
 

Councillor Hazel 
Evans, Cabinet 
Member for 
Environment 

 
 

Tudalen 75

https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s56929/Budget%20Monitoring%20Report%20-%20EPP%20November%202021.pdf


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix A

Extract from CHARGING DIGEST - Environment department

2020/21 

Actual

2021/22 

Budget

2022/23 

Budget

Business Unit Service Provided 2021/22                                                        

Charge Levied

2022/23                                                        

Proposed Charge

     2022/23                                                  

Comments
£ £ £

41,888 130,277 132,883 Sustainable Drainage (SAB) Sustainable Drainage (SAB) consent 

application fee < or =0.5 hectares

£420 - £700 £420 - £700 Statutory fee under Schedule 3 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. Application fee of 

£350 plus additional surcharge of £70 per 0.1 

hectares

Sustainable Drainage (SAB) consent 

application fee  >0.5 and < or = 1 

hectares

£750 - £950 £750 - £950 Statutory fee under Schedule 3 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. Application fee of 

£700 plus additional surcharge of £50 per 0.1 

hectares

Sustainable Drainage (SAB) consent 

application fee  >1 and < or = 5 hectares

£970-£1750 £970-£1750 Statutory fee under Schedule 3 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. Application fee of 

£950 plus additional surcharge of £20 per 0.1 

hectares up to and including 5 hectares

Sustainable Drainage (SAB) consent 

application fee  >5 hectares

£1760 - £7500 max fee £1760 - £7500 max fee Statutory fee under Schedule 3 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. Application fee of 

£1750 plus additional surcharge of £10 per 0.1 

hectares up to a maximum fee of £7500

Sustainable Drainage (SAB) consent - 

Inspection fees and site visit fees

£168 £168 Statutory fee under Schedule 3 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. Fees chargeable 

per visit in discharging the duties of the SAB 

approval body

T
udalen 77



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

   
 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R AMGYLCHEDD 

 
25 TACHWEDD 2021 

 
YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd J.D. James (Cadeirydd) 
 
Y Cynghorwyr:  
J.M. Charles, T.A.J. Davies, J.A. Davies, K. Davies, T.M. Higgins, E. Morgan, 
B.D.J. Phillips, J.S. Phillips, D. Thomas, A. Vaughan Owen,  
Y Cynghorydd W.T. Evans yn lle Cynghorydd S.J.G. Gilasbey 
Y Cynghorydd D. Jones yn lle Cynghorydd P.M. Edwards. 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol: 
Y Cynghorydd H.A.L. Evans, Aelod y Cabinet dros yr Amgylchedd; 
Y Cynghorydd P.M. Hughes, Aelod y Cabinet dros Diogelu'r Cyhoedd. 
 
Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod: 
R. Mullen, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd 
J. Morgan, Pennaeth Cartrefi a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel 
S. Pilliner, Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth 
R. S. Waters, Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth 
T. Evans, Transport Planning - Strategy and Infrastructure 
D. King, Highway Services Manager 
C.N. Nelson, Highways Asset Manager 
E. Evans, Prif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
S. Rees, Cyfieithydd Ar Y Pryd 
J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Rhith-Gyfarfod:- 10:00yb - 12:00yp 
 
[Sylwer:   

 Ar ôl cael cais gan y Cynghorydd Hazel Evans, yr Aelod Cabinet dros yr 
Amgylchedd, dywedodd y Cadeirydd wrth y Pwyllgor fod angen newid trefn 
busnes ar yr agenda i roi eglurder ac y byddai Eitem 7 yn cael ei ystyried cyn 
Eitem 6.  Fodd bynnag, er hwylustod cyfeirio, mae'r cofnodion hyn yn adlewyrchu 
trefn y materion ar agenda'r cyfarfod. 
 

 Oherwydd bod y Cadeirydd yn profi anawsterau technegol yn ystod Eitem 5 ar yr 
Agenda, cymerodd y Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan-Owen, Is-gadeirydd, yr awenau 
fel Cadeirydd ar gyfer y materion oedd yn weddill ar yr Agenda.  

 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr S.J.G. Gilasbey, P. 
Edwards E. Morgan ac A. Speake. 
 

Tudalen 79

Eitem Rhif  8



 

   
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS UNRHYW 
CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I UNRHYW EITEM AR YR 
AGENDA. 
 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch unrhyw chwip waharddedig. 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant personol. 
 

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW) 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
 

4. GRWP GORCHWYL A GORFFEN DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD A'R AMGYLCHEDD 
2021/22 DIWEDDARIAD 
 
Derbyniodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad diweddaru gan Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen 
Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r Amgylchedd mewn perthynas â'r adolygiad o Reoli tipio 
anghyfreithlon yn Sir Gaerfyrddin.  Rhoddodd yr adroddiad a gyflwynwyd gan 
Gadeirydd y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Pwyllgor am yr 
adolygiad, penderfyniad y Grŵp a'r rhesymau.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL;  
 
4.1 derbyn adroddiad y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen; 
 
4.2 derbyn penderfyniad y Grŵp i ohirio'r adolygiad o Reoli Tipio 

Anghyfreithlon yn Sir Gaerfyrddin tan ar ôl etholiadau 2022.  
 

5. STRATEGAETH SEILWAITH GWEFRU CERBYDAU TRYDAN CYNGOR SIR 
CAERFYRDDIN (CSC) - DATGARBONEIDDIO TRAFNIDIAETH 
 
Derbyniodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad a oedd yn nodi cynnigi fabwysiadu Strategaeth 
Seilwaith Gwefru Cerbydau Trydan ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin.  Roedd y strategaeth 
arfaethedig, a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros yr Amgylchedd, yn cynnwys 
13 polisi allweddol yn benodol i Sir Gaerfyrddin a fyddai'n helpu i ddatblygu 
seilwaith gwefru cerbydau trydan ar draws y sir yn y dyfodol i helpu i gyrraedd y 
targedau ar gyfer lleihau carbon. 
 
Amlinellodd yr adroddiad fod strategaeth a datblygiad y seilwaith yn anelu at 
annog busnesau, trigolion ac ymwelwyr i ddefnyddio cerbydau trydan.  Yn ogystal, 
byddai'r strategaeth yn caniatáu ar gyfer creu rhwydwaith strwythuredig sy'n 
seiliedig ar dystiolaeth a fyddai'n dangos ymrwymiad i gyrraedd targedau sero-net 
erbyn 2030 a 2050.  
 
Dywedwyd, pe bai'r Awdurdod yn penderfynu peidio â mabwysiadu'r strategaeth, y 
byddai'n golygu bod y sir yn agored i golli cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn y 
dyfodol ac yn atal y ddarpariaeth yn ôl yr amcan o ran carbon sero-net. Gan nad 
oes unrhyw strategaeth ar waith ar gyfer y maes hwn lle mae pethau'n symud yn 
gyflym a bod ceir petrol a disel yn cael eu gwahardd yn 2030, roedd perygl na 
allwn hwyluso ac annog rhwydwaith gwefru a fyddai'n cefnogi'r holl breswylwyr, 
busnesau ac ymwelwyr.  

Tudalen 80



 

   
 

 
Rhoddwyd sylw i'r sylwadau/ymholiadau canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:- 
 

 Gofynnwyd a fyddai modd ychwanegu'r defnydd o feiciau trydan at y 13 polisi 
allweddol? Eglurodd y Swyddog Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth - Strategaeth a 
Seilwaith fod darparu cysgodfan a chapasiti i wefru hyd at 10 e-feic ar gael 
neu byddai ar gael yn fuan yng Nghanolfan Hamdden Caerfyrddin, Canolfan 
Hamdden Dyffryn Aman, Canolfan Hamdden Llanymddyfri, y Goleudy, Porth y 
Dwyrain, Parc Gwledig Pen-bre, Rhodfa'r Santes Catrin – Caerfyrddin a 
Phentywyn. Byddai modd defnyddio'r cyfleusterau hyn ar gyfer e-feiciau yn y 
lleoliadau hyn yn rhad ac am ddim a byddai Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin neu 
drydydd partïon yn talu'r costau ynni.  Eglurwyd bod y Strategaeth hon ar hyn 
o bryd yn canolbwyntio ar geir a cherbydau ysgafn yn unig ac y byddai angen 
strategaeth ar wahân ar gyfer cludo nwyddau. Ychwanegodd y Pennaeth 
Trafnidiaeth a Phriffyrdd, er bod y strategaeth hon wedi canolbwyntio ar y 
cerbydau hynny a fyddai'n cael eu heffeithio gan y newidiadau sylweddol yn y 
dyfodol agos, ei fod yn cydnabod y twf yn y defnydd o e-feiciau ac y byddai'n 
ystyried eu cynnwys yn y strategaeth.  

 

 Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth - Strategaeth a Seilwaith, 
mewn ymateb i ymholiad a godwyd ynglŷn â'r cyfleuster gwefru yn Cross 
Hands, fod pedwar peiriant gwefru cyflym 50kw ar gyfer cerbydau ysgafn ac 
un peiriant gwefru cyflym iawn 150kw ar gael i'w defnyddio yn y cyfleuster yn 
Cross Hands. Yn ogystal, gan fod y ddarpariaeth ar y safle ar gael i'w 
hehangu, byddai'r defnydd yn cael ei fonitro ac os bydd gofyniad i ehangu, 
gellir gwneud hynny.  
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y cynllun i osod cyfleusterau gwefru mewn lleoliadau cyhoeddus, 
codwyd ymholiad ynghylch pwy sy'n talu am y trydan, y cwsmer neu'r 
cyflenwr? Eglurodd y Swyddog Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth - Strategaeth a Seilwaith 
y broses bresennol mewn perthynas â cheisiadau a chyllid i osod cyfleuster 
gwefru at ddefnydd y cyhoedd. Byddai'r cwsmer yn talu am ddefnyddio'r 
cyfleuster gwefru gyda cherdyn neu drwy ap.  Pe bai neuaddau cymunedol yn 
dymuno cael cyllid i osod cyfleusterau gwefru eu hunain i gynhyrchu ffrwd 
incwm, esboniwyd bod grantiau penodol ar gael gan y Swyddfa Cerbydau 
Allyriadau Sero. 

 

 Yn dilyn sylw bod y rhan fwyaf o'r cyfleusterau gwefru wedi'u lleoli mewn trefi, 
gofynnwyd a oedd unrhyw gynlluniau i leoli cyfleusterau gwefru mewn pentrefi 
gwledig?  Dywedodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth mai'r strategaeth 
hyd yma oedd gosod cyfleusterau gwefru mewn ardaloedd gwledig sy'n agos 
i'r prif rwydwaith ffyrdd er mwyn bodloni anghenion lleol yn ogystal â ffyrdd 
sydd â llawer o draffig. Ar hyn o bryd mae nifer o gyfleusterau gwefru sydd ar 
gael i'r cyhoedd wedi'u gosod yn yr ardaloedd gwledig sydd wedi'u nodi ar y 
map ar dudalen 37 yr adroddiad.  Dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio 
Trafnidiaeth - Strategaeth a Seilwaith wrth aelodau'r Pwyllgor fod rhestr yn rhoi 
gwybodaeth am leoliadau'r holl gyfleusterau gwefru a osodwyd hyd yma ar 
gael ar wefan y Cyngor.  Hefyd, rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau y byddai 15 o 
osodiadau eraill yn cael eu cwblhau maes o law gan ganolbwyntio ar 
gyrchfannau gwledig a Chanolfannau Hamdden o amgylch y Sir. 

Tudalen 81



 

   
 

O ran y grantiau sydd ar gael i Neuaddau Cymunedol/Pentref, byddai'r 
Swyddog Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth - Strategaeth a Seilwaith yn hapus i gynghori 
a chynorthwyo'r rhai a fyddai â diddordeb mewn gwneud cais.  

 

 Mewn ymateb i bryder a godwyd nad yw rhai pwyntiau gwefru o bosibl yn 
addas ar gyfer sicrhau mynediad i bobl anabl, nododd y Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth 
a Phriffyrdd, er bod gosodiadau cynnar yn addas ar gyfer y rhan fwyaf o 
geir/cerbydau ysgafn, fod angen gwneud addasiadau ar rai safleoedd er mwyn 
datrys cyfyngiadau o ran mynediad.  Yn ogystal, roedd datblygiadau pellach ar 
y gweill o ran darparu ar gyfer cerbydau mwy o faint. Rhoddwyd sicrwydd bod 
cynlluniau'r dyfodol bellach yn darparu mynediad i bobl anabl a oedd wedi'i 
ystyried wrth ddatblygu'r hwb gwefru yn Cross Hands. Wrth i'r farchnad 
ddatblygu byddai mynediad i bobl anabl yn faes a fyddai'n cael ei feithrin yn y 
dyfodol. 
 

 Gwnaed ymholiad ynghylch y cyfleusterau ehangach oedd ar gael, e.e. 
toiledau a lluniaeth i'r rhai sy'n aros i'w cerbydau wefru ac a oedd hyn yn cael 
ei ystyried yn y cynlluniau lleoliad?  Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Cynllunio 
Trafnidiaeth - Strategaeth a Seilwaith fod y peiriannau gwefru yn yr Hwb 
Gwefru yn Cross Hands yn beiriannau gwefru cyflym a ddylai gymryd hyd at 
30 munud i wefru'n llawn a pheiriannau gwefru'n gyflym iawn sy'n cymryd 20 
munud sy'n golygu amser aros byr. Ychwanegodd Cyfarwyddwr yr 
Amgylchedd y rhagwelwyd y byddai'r rhan fwyaf o'r cyhoedd yn defnyddio'r 
cyfleusterau gwefru a oedd wedi'u lleoli'n strategol ar hyd llwybrau â 
chyfleusterau cysur ac mewn neuaddau cymunedol fel hwb gwefru wrth 
ymweld â'r lleoliad.  Pwysleisiodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth fod hwn 
yn faes na allai'r Cyngor Sir ei gyflawni'n annibynnol. Dibynnir ar fuddsoddiad 
sylweddol gan y Llywodraeth o ystyried graddfa'r gwaith i ddatblygu'r seilwaith 
cerbydau trydan.  

 

 Cyfeiriwyd at "Cerbydau Trydan 4 - annog y defnydd o gerbydau trydan yn y 
fflyd". Gofynnwyd ai'r gair 'annog' oedd y term cywir i'w ddefnyddio ac a fyddai 
rhywbeth cryfach yn fwy addas?  Eglurodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth fod y Strategaeth Fflyd yn gymhleth gan y byddai'n rhaid 
cwblhau sawl asesiad o ran seilwaith, goblygiadau gweithredu, ac anghenion 
gwasanaeth ac o gofio hyn, rhagwelwyd y byddai'r strategaeth yn cael ei 
chyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor yng Ngwanwyn 2022.  Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet 
dros yr Amgylchedd, yn anffodus, nad oedd y Cyngor yn gallu mandadu'r 
defnydd o gerbydau trydan, ond byddai'n annog hyn ar bob cyfle posibl drwy 
ddarparu'r cyfleusterau priodol.   

 

 Cyfeiriwyd at "Cerbydau Trydan 6 - Ymchwilio i ffyrdd o Annog Darpariaeth 
Pwyntiau Gwefru drwy'r Broses Gynllunio", a gofynnwyd beth oedd y broses 
gynllunio mewn perthynas â darparu peiriannau gwefru cerbydau trydan ac os 
oedd unrhyw beth y gellid ei wneud yn wleidyddol er mwyn cryfhau'r broses?  
Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd y byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
ymchwilio i adeiladau newydd, rhai domestig a busnesau, fel rhan o'i 
Strategaeth Garbon Cymru Sero Net, felly ni fyddai adran gynllunio'r Cyngor 
yn ystyried hyn ar ei phen ei hun.  Eglurodd y Swyddog Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth 
- Strategaeth a Seilwaith, fel rhan o ymrwymiad y Cyngor i gynyddu'r 
cyflenwad o dai fforddiadwy, fod pwyntiau gwefru cerbydau trydan wedi'u 
cynnwys ar holl ddatblygiadau tai newydd newydd y Cyngor.  

 

Tudalen 82



 

   
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y tabl ar dudalen 18 yr adroddiad lle nodwyd bod angen i 
gyfleuster Gwefru'n Gyflym (a) gael rhwng 30,000 a 55,000 o beiriannau 
gwefru'n gyflym ar gael i'w defnyddio erbyn 2030 (ar hyn o bryd mae llai nag 
1% o hyn wedi'i osod). Gofynnwyd a oedd y Cyngor yn hyderus y byddai'r 99% 
sy'n weddill yn cael ei osod ymhen 8 mlynedd? Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr yr 
Amgylchedd fod Panel Datgarboneiddio Cenedlaethol wedi'i lunio gan CLlLC a 
oedd yn cynnwys cynrychiolwyr o ranbarthau eraill a'r Prif Weithredwr. O ran 
cyflawni'r strategaeth, roedd yn dibynnu'n sylweddol ar Lywodraeth Cymru a'r 
dull gweithredu cenedlaethol. Fodd bynnag, yn dilyn cyfarfod diweddar gydag 
Aelodau'r Cabinet, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd a Lee Waters – y Dirprwy 
Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd, dywedwyd ei bod yn ymddangos bod mynegiant o 
hyder o ymrwymiad ariannol a fyddai'n sicrhau bod modd cyflawni'r 
strategaethau. 

 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL I ARGYMELL I'R CABINET y dylid 
mabwysiadu'r Strategaeth Seilwaith Gwefru Cerbydau Trydan arfaethedig ar 
gyfer y Cyngor. 
 

6. LLAWLYFR CYNNAL A CHADW'R CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU PRIFFYRDD 
 
[Sylwer: Cafodd yr eitem hon ei hystyried ar ôl Eitem 7 ar yr Agenda]  
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor Lawlyfr Cynnal a Chadw'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffordd i 
gefnogi'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros 
yr Amgylchedd.  Gofynnodd yr adroddiad i'r Pwyllgor ystyried a rhoi sylwadau ar 
rannau 4.1 i 4.4 sydd ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad cyn i'r Cabinet ei fabwysiadu.  
 
Rhoddwyd sylw i'r sylwadau/ymholiadau canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:- 
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at adran 4.2 Hierarchaeth Rhwydwaith Priffyrdd ar dudalen 13 yr 
adroddiad.  O ran CH4 ar y tabl, mynegwyd pryder ynghylch y flaenoriaeth isel 
o ran ffyrdd gwledig, dywedwyd bod llawer o'r ffyrdd gwledig yn gwasanaethu 
ac yn cysylltu cymunedau mewn ardaloedd gwledig ac oherwydd hyn dylid 
rhoi mwy o flaenoriaeth iddynt. Tynnodd y Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth a'r Priffyrdd 
sylw at raddfa'r her o ran yr asesiad cyflwr a datganiad blynyddol o'r ffyrdd, 
ynghyd â lefel y buddsoddiadau sy'n ofynnol i gynnal y rhwydwaith ffyrdd yn 
Sir Gaerfyrddin. Er y cydnabyddir bod cymunedau gwledig yr un mor bwysig, 
roedd y rhestr yn adlewyrchu system asesu, arolygu ac atgyweirio wedi'i 
blaenoriaethu yn ôl yr adnoddau sydd ar gael.  
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at adran 4.3 Trefn Arolygu ac Atgyweirio Priffyrdd yr adroddiad.  
Mynegwyd pryder mai dim ond unwaith y flwyddyn yr arolygwyd y ffyrdd 
gwledig fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad, a theimlwyd nad oedd hyn yn ddigon.  
Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth, er bod asesiad ffurfiol yn 
cael ei gynnal unwaith y flwyddyn, fod dulliau gwybodaeth eraill yn cael eu 
derbyn drwy wybodaeth gyhoeddus yr ymatebwyd iddi yn unol â hynny. 
Ychwanegodd y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth fod system 
riportio ar-lein newydd bellach ar gael i'r cyhoedd a oedd yn anelu at ymateb 
mwy effeithlon i faterion yr adroddwyd amdanynt.  

Tudalen 83



 

   
 

 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y tabl Ffordd gerbydau: Amlder Archwiliad Arferol  Gofynnwyd 
am eglurhad ynghylch yr ystod goddefgarwch. Eglurodd y Rheolwr 
Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth fod Amlder yr Archwiliadau Arferol o 
Briffyrdd wedi'i raglennu fel y dangosir yn yr adroddiad.  Roedd angen 
goddefgarwch o ran amlder archwiliadau yn achos unrhyw darfu megis tywydd 
gwael, digwyddiadau heb eu cynllunio a salwch neu absenoldeb. Rheolwyd y 
rhaglen a goddefgarwch o ran amlder gan y Rheolwr Rhanbarthol Cynorthwyol 
perthnasol. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CABINET y dylai Rhannau 
4.1 i 4.4 y Llawlyfr Cynnal a Chadw'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd gael eu 
cymeradwyo. 
 

7. ADRODDIAD DATGANIAD BLYNYDDOL 2021 Y CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU 
PRIFFYRDD 
 
[Sylwer: ystyriwyd yr eitem hon cyn eitem 6 ar yr Agenda] 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor Adroddiad Datganiad Blynyddol 2021 y Cynllun Rheoli Asedau 
Priffyrdd, a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros yr Amgylchedd ac a gefnogwyd 
gan gyflwyniad PowerPoint a gyflwynwyd gan Reolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth.  
 
Codwyd y cwestiynau/materion canlynol ar yr adroddiad:- 
 

 Gofynnwyd a oedd y gwariant isel o'i gymharu â Chynghorau eraill wedi'i 
briodoli'n uniongyrchol i'r rhwydwaith ffyrdd mawr yn Sir Gaerfyrddin?  
Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd fod y gwariant a ddyrannwyd i 
briffyrdd yn cael ei briodoli drwy'r penderfyniadau ymwybodol a wnaed gan y 
Cyngor yn ystod y broses o bennu'r gyllideb ac y byddai'n cael effaith ar y 
rhwydwaith ffyrdd o dan gyfrifoldeb Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin.  Byddai'r manylion 
a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad hwn yn cael eu hystyried wrth gyflwyno sylwadau yn 
erbyn y pwysau a'r gofynion eraill sy'n wynebu'r Cyngor.  
 

 Mynegwyd pryder bod y dull newydd o osod wyneb newydd wedi methu a bu'n 
rhaid ail-wneud y gwaith hwn a bod rhai ffyrdd yn Sir Gaerfyrddin yn dal i aros 
i gael eu hatgyweirio ar ôl cyfnod hir o amser. Gofynnwyd am ragor o 
wybodaeth am y mater hwn. Eglurodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth fod gwaith gosod wyneb newydd ar y ffyrdd a gyflawnwyd gan 
gontractwyr yn gyfiawn ac y byddai unrhyw broblemau o ran deunyddiau yn 
cael eu cywiro ar draul y contractwyr.  Dywedodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau 
Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth, mewn ymateb i'r materion penodol parhaus sy'n 
ymwneud ag arwynebau ffyrdd, y byddai'n cysylltu â'r Aelodau y tu allan i 
gyfarfod y Pwyllgor. 
 

 Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn a godwyd mewn perthynas â newid goleuadau 
cyhoeddus i oleuadau LED, cadarnhaodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd 
a Chludiant fod y rhaglen wedi'i chwblhau yn haf 2020 ac o ganlyniad i'r 
addasiadau, amcangyfrifwyd bod gostyngiad o 1200 tunnell o allyriadau 
carbon deuocsid wedi'i gyflawni. 

 

Tudalen 84



 

   
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at yr Ymchwiliadau Draenio yn yr adroddiad. O ran y darn"Mae'r 
arolygon hyd yma wedi dangos bod 32% o'n pibellau draenio naill ai wedi'u 
lleihau'n ddifrifol neu wedi'u blocio ac yn anniogel", mynegwyd prydery byddai 
dŵr ychwanegol yn achosi amhariad ar arwynebau ffyrdd o ganlyniad i'r 
draeniau llai a'r draeniau sydd wedi'u blocio. Dywedodd Rheolwr y 
Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth fod y ffigur o 32% yn peri pryder, 
dywedodd ei fod yn seiliedig ar sampl fach o arolygon draenio a gynhaliwyd ar 
hyd yr A484 a ffyrdd critigol eraill a oedd yn dueddol o gael problemau yn 
ystod tywydd gwael.  Y gobaith oedd y byddai canran uchel o bibellau sydd 
wedi'u blocio yn cael eu datrys drwy chwistrellu dŵr pwysedd uchel, ond 
cydnabuwyd y gallai rhai rhwydweithiau draenio fod â phroblemau strwythurol 
ar hyd piblinellau ac felly byddai angen eu hasesu ymhellach. Ychwanegodd y 
Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth fod ceisiadau cyfalaf wedi'u cyflwyno i 
helpu i fynd i'r afael â'r materion ac mewn ymateb i stormydd, a chyflynwyd 
ceisiadau pellach am arian gan Lywodraeth Cymru i helpu i fynd i'r afael ag 
unrhyw ddifrod a achoswyd.  
 

 Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Trafnidiaeth a Phriffyrdd, mewn ymateb i ymholiad a 
godwyd ynglŷn â'r cynnydd ar lwybr troed y Cardi Bach, fod y prosiect ar y cyd 
ar gam cynnal astudiaeth ddichonoldeb, fodd bynnag, nid oedd yn ymwybodol 
o sefyllfa bresennol y prosiect.  Byddai diweddariad yn cael ei anfon at y 
Cynghorydd lleol er gwybodaeth.   

 

 Dywedwyd bod tyllau yn digwydd o ganlyniad i waith atgyweirio gan gwmnïau 
cyfleustodau.  Gofynnwyd a ystyriwyd bod y warant o 2 flynedd yn ddigon hir 
ac a ellid ymestyn hyn?  Eglurodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth fod y warant 2 flynedd yn safon genedlaethol, ond roedd y 
Cyngor yn cynyddu ei ffocws ar y drefn arolygu o ran y gwaith cyfleustodau.  
Er mwyn cynorthwyo gyda'r drefn arolygu, rhoddwyd gwybod i Aelodau'r 
Pwyllgor fod adnodd ychwanegol wedi'i sicrhau dros dro.  

 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y 3 opsiwn buddsoddi a amlinellwyd yn yr adroddiad.   
Gofynnwyd a oedd unrhyw botensial y byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i 
gyfrannu tuag at y £6m yn 2022/23 fel y nodir yn opsiwn 3?  Eglurodd y 
Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth y byddai'n sicr yn cynorthwyo gyda'r 
pwysau ar y rhaglen gyfalaf ehangach, ond rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau fod 
Llywodraeth Cymru wrthi'n cynnal adolygiad priffyrdd a byddai canlyniad yr 
adolygiad yn pennu unrhyw arian yn y dyfodol.  Mewn perthynas â'r gyllideb, 
cydnabu'r Aelod Cabinet dros yr Amgylchedd fod cyflwr y ffyrdd yn effeithio ar 
bob aelod o'r cyhoedd ac anogodd pob Aelod i ystyried y rhwydwaith ffyrdd yn 
ystod y broses o bennu'r gyllideb. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi Adroddiad Datganiad Blynyddol 2021 
y Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd. 

Tudalen 85



 

   
 

 
8. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 

 
Ystyriodd y Pwyllgor y rhestr o eitemau i gael eu cynnwys ar yr agenda ar gyfer y 
cyfarfod nesaf oedd i'w gynnal ar 22 Rhagfyr 2021 a rhoddwyd cyfle i'r Pwyllgor 
wneud cais am unrhyw wybodaeth benodol yr hoffai'r Aelodau ei chynnwys yn yr 
adroddiadau.  
 
Roedd yr adroddiad yn adlewyrchu'r newid bod y Strategaeth Farchogaeth a oedd 
i fod i gael ei dosbarthu drwy e-bost i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu ym mis Rhagfyr, 
wedi'i ohirio tan fis Mawrth 2022. 
 
Roedd adroddiad yn nodi hefyd fod dau adroddiad wedi'u dosbarthu i'r aelodau ym 
mis Hydref, yn unol â phenderfyniad y Pwyllgor yn 2021 i graffu y tu allan i broses 
ffurfiol y Pwyllgor:- 
 

 Adroddiad Monitro Perfformiad (1 Ebrill 2021 - 30 Mehefin 2021)  

 Hierarchaeth Rhwydwaith Hawliau Tramwy Cyhoeddus  

 
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau na dderbyniwyd unrhyw sylwadau nac ymholiadau. 
 
Gofynnwyd am y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y Rheoliadau Bridio Cŵn/Amodau 
Trwyddedu ac ychwanegu'r adolygiad gan Lywodraeth Cymru y cyfeiriwyd ato ar 
Flaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor.  Gan nad oedd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ddiogelu'r 
Cyhoedd yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod, oherwydd ei fod yn gorfod gadael yn gynnar, 
byddai'r Swyddog Cymorth Craffu yn cyfleu'r cais i'r Aelod Cabinet a byddai 
diweddariad yn cael ei ddosbarthu drwy e-bost i Aelodau'r Pwyllgor.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL  
 
8.1   nodi'r rhestr o eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i'w hystyried yn y 

 cyfarfod nesaf ar 22 Rhagfyr 2021; 
  
8.2 nodi Blaenraglen Waith ddiwygiedig y Pwyllgor 2021/22. 
 

9. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD 
AR 4 HYDREF 2021 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor oedd wedi'i gynnal 
ar 4 Hydref, 2021 gan eu bod yn gywir. 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CADEIRYDD       DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 86


	Agenda
	4 ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD CHWARTER 2 - 2021/22 (1 EBRILL I 30 MEDI 2021
	Adroddiad

	5 ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD INTERIM Y STRATEGAETH TOILEDAU LLEOL
	Adroddiad

	6 DATGANIAD GORFODI RHEOLAU CYNLLUNIO DRAFFT
	Datganiad Gorfodi Rheolau Cynllunio Drafft

	7 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	Atodiad A

	8 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 25 TACHWEDD 2021



